LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

	2006	2005	2005
	Consolidated	Scheme	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
Short term	23,994	23,994	15,920
Post employment	2,155	2,155	1,085
Other long term	•	_	-
Termination benefits	-	•	-
Equity based payment	•		-
Other		***	226
	26,149	26,149	17,231

Loans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their related entities during the period.

Peter Charles Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Pty Ltd which is a joint borrower in a loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2006 for \$1,690,000 (MORT 2157). This transaction was approved on an arms length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

(c) Other Transactions and Balances with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party note 11, the Scheme has no other transactions and balances with specified KMP.

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Scheme's principal financial instruments comprise units in managed investment schemes, investments in secured mortgages, net assets attributable to unitholders, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the investment made by unitholders.

The Scheme also has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Scheme's financial instruments are interest rate risk and credit risk. The Responsible Entity reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Interest rate risk

ê

16.

Interest rate risk exposures

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Scheme and consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial labilities, is set out below:

CONSOLIDATED

		Weig	Weighted	Floating Interest Rafe	erest Rate		Fixed interest rate	rest rate		Total	B
	Note	aver interes	avcrage interest rate			Securities contracted to mature in less than I year	ntracted to than I year	Securities contracted to Securities contracted to infure in less than I year mature in more than I year but less than 5 years	ntracted to c than I year n S years		
		2006	2005	2006	2005	2006	2005	2006	2005	2006	2002
Cash assets	13(6)	5.54	5.32	32,995,697	32,995,697 46,917,405	•	1	ì	•	39,754,106	46,917,405
Secured mortgage loans (gross)	80	10.11	10.20	,	1	685,393,934	387,361,145	685,393,934 387,361,145 180,714,839 225,309,358 869,108,773	225,309,358	869,108,773	~
Loan facility	0	5.47	,	,		7		. (30,416,662)	(30,416,662)	(30,416,662)	•
Total				32,995,697	46.917.405	685.393.934	387.361.145	32.995.697 46.917.405 685.393.934 387.361.145 150.298.177 225.309.358 878.446.217 659.887.908	225.309.358	878.445.217	808 585 908

All other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing.

,

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

SCHEME

		Weig	Weighted	Floating Interest Rate	lerest Rate		Fixed interest rate	erest rate		Total	ţa.
	Note	aver intere	average inferest rate			Securities co mature in less	Securities contracted to mature in less than I year	Securities contracted to mature in more than I year but less than 5 years	ntracted to e than I year in 5 years		
		2806	2005	2006	2005	2006	2005	2006	2005	2006	2002
Cash assets	13(b)	5.54	5.32	32,645,002	46,917,405	•	1	•	•	32,645,002	46 917 405
Secured mortgage loans (gross)	ev ;	10.11	10,20	,	•	685,393,934	387,361,145	183,714,839	225,309,358	90	612,670,503
Unsecured loan	=	6.5	,	1	ŧ	٠	•	6,000,000	•	6,000,000	
Loan facility	6	5.47	,	1	*	•	•	(30,416,662)	•	(30,416,662)	,
Total			,	32,645,002	46,917,405	685,393,934	32,645,002 46,917,405 685,393,934 387,361,145 156,298,177 225,309,358 884,446,217 659,587,908	156,298,177	225,309,358	884,446,217	659,587,908

All other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing.

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

b) Credit risk exposure

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted. The total credit risk for recognised items including securities is therefore limited to the amount carried on the statement of financial position.

Recognised financial instruments

The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by:

- undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
- dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;
- obtaining independent valuations for all loans; and
- maintaining an average loan to valuation ratios not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

	2006	2005
Sydney CBD	1.27 %	1.84 %
Within 40km of Sydney CBD	25.98 %	26.24 %
New South Wales - Other	14.70 %	20.66 %
Melbourne CBD	0.39 %	0.44 %
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD	9.9 %	12.04 %
Victoria - Other	4.17%	7.26 %
Brisbane CBD	0.00 %	0.00 %
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD	18.50 %	15.06 %
Queensland - Other	12.31 %	4.41 %
Canberra - Other .	4.30 %	6.64 %
NT	1.58 %	0.13 %
SA	6.71 %	3.25 %
WA	0.19 %	2.03 %
	100.00 %	100.00 %

As at 30 June 2006 39.4% of the balance of mortgage loans is secured on construction/development property (2005: 36.5%) and 60.5% on commercial property (2005: 63.5%).

The Scheme's maximum credit risk exposure at balance date in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying value of these assets as indicated in the statement of financial position. No single mortgage investment exceeds 10% of the Scheme which ensures that there is no concentration of risk.

c) Liquidity and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to investment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests for

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme as adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover any unusual obligations and that liquidity is managed within the Scheme's policies and limits.

d) Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The Scheme's financial assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position are carried at amounts that approximate net fair value

17. COMPOSITION OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

On 22 December 2005, LM Mortgage Income Fund acquired 100% ownership of LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd, an unlisted company based in Australia newly formed on 22 December 2005.

From the date of acquisition, LM MIF Investment Pty Ltd has contributed nil to the net profit of the consolidated entity.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business segment

The Scheme is organised into one main business segment which operates solely in the business of investment management within Australia. The Scheme operates from Australia (the geographical segment).

(b) Geographic segments

The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Australian.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2006.

20. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the consolidated entity disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2006 or on the results and cash flows of the consolidated entity for the year ended on that date.

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, I state that:

- a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out on pages 6 to 34 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and
 - (ii) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme's financial position as at 30 June 2006, and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.
- there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and
- c) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitution.

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy

Director

Gold Coast

21 August 2006

II ERNST & YOUNG

1 Eagle Street Brisbane QLD 4000 Australia ze Tel 61 7 3011 3333 Fax 61 7 3011 3100

PO Box 7878 Waterfront Place Brisbane QLD 4001

Independent audit report to unitholders of LM Mortgage Income Fund

Scope

The financial report and directors' responsibility

The financial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors' declaration for LM Mortgage Income Fund ("the Scheme") and the consolidated entity, for the year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the Scheme and the entities it controlled during that year.

The directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Scheme and the consolidated entity, and that complies with Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion to the unitholders of the Scheme. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001*, including compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Scheme's and the consolidated entity's financial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

- examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report; and
- assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial reporting when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately reflected in the financial report. These and our other procedures did not include consideration or judgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by the directors and management of the Scheme.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

■ ERNST & YOUNG

Independence

We are independent of the Scheme and the consolidated entity and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and the *Corporations Act 2001*. We have given to the directors of the Responsible Entity a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the Directors' Report.

Audit opinion

In our opinion the financial report of LM Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with:

- (a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM Mortgage Income Fund and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2006 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
- (b) other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

Ernst & Young

Mike Meintjes

Partner Brisbane

brisbane

21 August 2006

Australian Securities & Investments Commission



Corporations Act 2001 294, 295, 298-300, 307, 308, 319, 321, 322 Corporations Regulations 1.0.08

Copy of financial statements and reports

Company/scheme details	Company/scheme name			
	LM FIRST MORTGAGE 1.	NOME FUND		
	ACN/ARBN/ARSN/PIN/ABN			
	089 343 288			
			·	
Lodgement details	Who should ASIC contact if there is a query about this form	?		
and golden de la company	Firm/organisation			
	LM Investment Manag	ement Ltg		
	Contact-name/position description			
	JARYN Halliwell			
	ASIC registered agent number (if applicable)	MECE IN THE		
	N/9			
	Tejephone number	25 SEP 2007		
	(07) 5584 4500	BRISBANE & JOHNESS		
	Postal address	CENTRE		
	10 gox 485			
	Surfers Haradise Wild.	4217		
1 Reason for Indoemen	t of statement and reports			
Tick appropriate box				
нск арргорнате вох	A public company or a disclosing entity which is not a reg undertaking	stered scheme or prescribed interest	(A)	
	A registered scheme		(B)	
			• •	
	Amendment of financial statements or directors' report (co	mpany)	(C)	
	Amendment of financial statements or directors' report (re	gistered scheme)	(D)	
	A large proprietary company that is not a disclosing entity		(H)	
A small proprietary company that is controlled by a foreign company for all or part of the period and				
		outinperity is all of post of the posted dire	(l)	
	where the company's profit or loss for the period is not co- registered foreign company, company, registered scheme	vered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a	.,	
	where the company's profit or loss for the period is not co-	vered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a or disclosing entity	(J)	
	where the company's profit or loss for the period is not co- registered foreign company, company, registered scheme	vered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a or disclosing entity prepare and lodge statements and reports		
	where the company's profit or loss for the period is not coregistered foreign company, company, registered scheme A small proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to A prescribed interest undertaking that is a disclosing entity	vered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a or disclosing entity prepare and lodge statements and reports	(J)	
	where the company's profit or loss for the period is not coregistered foreign company, company, registered scheme A small proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to A prescribed interest undertaking that is a disclosing entity	vered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a or disclosing entity prepare and lodge statements and reports ,	(J)	
Dates on which financial year begins and ends Date of annual general meeting if apolicable)	where the company's profit or loss for the period is not coregistered foreign company, company, registered scheme A small proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to A prescribed interest undertaking that is a disclosing entity Financial year begins Financial year begins	vered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a or disclosing entity prepare and lodge statements and reports ,	(J)	

ASIC Form 388

1 July 2007

Page 1 of 3

within 14 days of the appointment of the auditor. Family name Given name CRNST YOUNG ACNIABN 752 887 727 49 or		if (ne company is a large proprietary company	that is not a disclosing entity, please complete the following information as
B What is the value of the consolidated gross assets of the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls? C How many employees are employed by the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls? D How many members does the large proprietary company have? Were the financial statements audited? Yes No If no, is there a class order exemption current for audit relet? Yes No If yes, does the auditor's report (a:308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s:307? Yes No Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s:307? Yes No Auditor registration number (for sichiotual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name Given name Corpspany name Corpspany name Corpspany name				
C How many employees are employed by the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?				
C How many employees are employed by the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?				
3 Auditor's report Were the financial statements audited? Yes No If no, is there a class order exemption current for audit relief? Yes No If yes, does the auditor's report (\$308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in \$307? Yes No Details of current auditor Registered schemes must edvise ASIC Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name Or Company name		В	What is the value of the consolidated gro	ss assets of the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?
A Details of current auditor Legistered schemes must advise ASIC the appointment of an auditor on the auditor on the appointment of an auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the auditor on the appointment of the auditor on the				
Were the financial statements audited? Ves		С	How many employees are employed by t	he large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?
Were the financial statements audited? Ves				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Were the financial statements audited? Ves		^		
Were the financial statements audited? Yes		U	How many members does the large propi	retary company have?
Were the financial statements audited? Yes				
Were the financial statements audited? Yes				
No	3 Auditor's report			
No If no, is there a class order exemption current for audit relief? Yes No No If yes, does the auditor's report (s308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s307? Yes No No Details of current auditor Registered schemes must edvise ASIC the appointment of scheme auditor on a company name Given name Given name Given name Government ACNIABN 752 887 727 49 or		Wet	re the financial statements audited?	
No If no, is there a class order exemption current for audit relief? Yes No If yes, does the auditor's report (s308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s307? Yes No No Details of current auditor egistered schemes must advise ASIC the appointment of an auditor on a company name or Company name Given name Given name Given name ACNIABN 75288772749 or			─⊠ _{Yes}	
If no, is there a class order exemption current for audit relief? Yes No If yes, does the auditor's report (s308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s307? Yes No No Details of current auditor Legistered schemes must advise ASIC If the appointment of an auditor on a common star? Appointment of scheme auditor or each pointment of scheme auditor. Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name COMPST YOUN O ACNIABN 752 887 737 49 or			r1	
Yes No No If yes, does the auditor's report (s308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No No Details of current auditor Yes No Details of current auditor Yes No Details of current auditor Yes No No No Details of current auditor Yes No No No No No No No N			F" -	On ourrant for midit estings
If yes, does the auditor's report (s308) for the financial year contain a statement of: Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s307? Yes No No Details of current auditor Legistered schemes must advise ASIC at the appointment of an auditor on a or or start and auditor on a company name Family name Given name COMPANY ACNIABN 75288772749 or				on content of Book reserv
Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No Details of current auditor			∐ Yes	
Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307? Yes No Details of current auditor Registered schemes must advise ASIC to a popointment of an auditor on a corn 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor auditor. Auditor registration number (tor individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name CLNST Ayoun G ACN/ABN 752 887 737 49 or				
Details of current auditor Legistered schemes must advise ASIC to the appointment of scheme auditor auditor. Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Company name	ŀ	lf ye	s, does the auditor's report (s308) for the	financial year contain a statement of:
Details of current auditor Registered schemes must advise ASIC to the appointment of an auditor on a corn 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor rithin 14 days of the appointment of the appointment of the appointment of the auditor. Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name Corn Company name COMPANST A YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 887 737 49 Or			Reasons for the auditor not being satisfi	ed as to the matters referred to in s307?
Details of current auditor Registered schemes must advise ASIC to the appointment of an auditor on a corn 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor rithin 14 days of the appointment of the appointment of the appointment of the auditor. Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name Corn Company name COMPANST A YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 887 737 49 Or				
Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s307? Yes No No Details of current auditor Legistered schemes must advise ASIC It the appointment of an auditor on a corm 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor rithin 14 days of the appointment of the uditor. Family name Given name Company name CLNST ~ YOUNG ACNIABN 752 887 727 49 or				
Yes No No Potails of current auditor Registered schemes must advise ASIC the appointment of an auditor on a composition of the appointment of				
Details of current auditor egistered schemes must advise ASIC Interappointment of an auditor on a corm 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor or ithin 14 days of the appointment of the additor. Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name CLNST ~ YOUNG ACNIABN 752 887 727 49 or				concerning any matter referred to in s307?
Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name CCNST ~ YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 881 737 49 Or				
Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name COMPANY ACNIABN 752 887 727 49 or			△ No	
Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company) Family name Given name COMPANY ACNIABN 752 887 727 49 or				
If the appointment of an auditor on a corm 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor ithin 14 days of the appointment of the additor. Family name Given name CCNST ~ YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 881 727 49 or	Details of current audit	or		
f the appointment of an auditor on a orm 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor fithin 14 days of the appointment of the uditor. Family name Given name CCMST ~ YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 881 727 49 Or	<u>-</u>	Audi	tor registration number (for individual audit	or or authorised audit company)
Family name Given name Cor Company name CRNST ~ YOUN () ACN/ABN 752 887 727 49 Or				• •
of Company name ERNST ~ YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 881 727 49 Of	Form 5137 Appointment of scheme auditor	Fam	ily name	Given name
Company name ERNST ~ YOUN () ACN/ABN 752 887 727 49 or				
ERNST ~ YOUNG ACN/ABN 752 881 727 49	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the	L		h
ACN/ABN 752 881 727 49	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the	Or		
752 881 727 49	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the		pany name	
752 881 727 49	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the	Com		
or	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the	Com	RNST LYOUNG	
	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the	Com	RNST ayoung	
rim name (ii appiicanie)	ithin 14 days of the appointment of the	Com ACN	RNST ayoung	
	within 14 days of the appointment of the	Com ACN or	RNST ayoung	

ASIC Form 388

1 July 2007

Page 2 of 3

4 Continued Details	of current auditor	
	Office, unit, level / //	
	Waterfront Place	
	Street number and Street pame	
	1 Eggle Street	
	Suburb/City State/Territory	
	Krisbane 3/01	
	Postcode Country (if not Australia	
	422 ^C	***************************************
	Date of appointment	
Statements and rep	ports to be attached to this form	
	Financial statements for the year (as per s295(2) and accounting standards)	*
	Income statement for the year Balance sheet as at the end of the year See Annexure	A "
	Statement of cash flows for the year	•
	Statement of changes in equity or statement of recognised income and expense for the year	
	If required by accounting standards - the consolidated income statement, balance sheet, statement flows and statement of changes in equity/statement of recognised income and expense	int of cash
	Notes to financial statements (as per s295(3))	
	Disclosures required by the regulations	
	Notes required by the accounting standards	
	Any other information necessary to give a true and fair view (see s297)	
	The directors' declaration about the statements and notes (as per s295(4))	
	The directors' report for the year, including the auditor's independence declaration (as per s298 to s300A)	
	Auditor's report required under s308 and s314	
	Concise report (if any) (s314)	
ignature	I certify that the attached documents marked () are a true copy of the annual reports required under	s319.
ee Guide for details of signatory.	Name USA DARCY	
	Signature VI VI VI VI	
	The state of the s	i
	Capacity	
	Director	
	☐ Company secretary	
	Date signed a 5 / O 7 /	
TETETE PARTIE NEW TOTAL PROTECTION OF THE PARTIES O		***************************************
odgement	Send completed and signed forms to: Australian Securities and Investments Commission, Telephone 13 5177 3988	
	PO Ray 4888 Cinneland Mail Costo MC 3844	
	Web www.asic.gov.au	

ASIC Form 388

1 July 2007

Page 3 of 3

This is Annexure "A" of 36 Pages referred to in From 388 - Copy of Financial Statement and Reports

LISA DARCY - DIRECTOR

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

(formerly LM Mortgage Income Fund)

ABN: 66 485 247 488

Annual Report

For the year ended 30 June 2007

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

(formerly LM Mortgage Income Fund)

ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report

For the year ended 30 June 2007

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report – 30 June 2007

Contents

DIRECTORS' REPORT	
AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION	4
INCOME STATEMENT	
BALANCE SHEET	t
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	
CASH FLOW STATEMENT	
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	8
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION	32
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT	33

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Ltd (ABN 68 077 208 461). The Responsible Entity's registered office is Level 4, RSL Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Directors' Report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund, present their report together with the consolidated financial report of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund ("the Scheme") and its subsidiary ("the consolidated entity"), for the year ended 30 June 2007. The directors' report is not part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the year or since the end of the year and up to the date of this report:

Name
Period of directorship
Mr Peter Charles Drake
Appointed 31 January 1997
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy
Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr John Dillon
Appointed 8 June 2005
Mr Eghard van der Hoven
Appointed 22 June 2006
Ms Francene Mulder
Appointed 30 September 2006
Mr John Vallander Llewellyn
Appointed 6 June 2007

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders' funds in registered first mortgages, unlisted managed investment schemes and cash investments in Australia, in accordance with the Scheme's Constitution and in accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the current product disclosure document.

During the year, the Scheme's name was changed to LM First Mortgage Income Fund.

The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.

SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999. The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the Responsible Entity since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

During the year, the Scheme continued to invest directly in registered first mortgage loans secured by property in Australia, unlisted managed investment schemes and cash assets.

The change in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Scheme is presented in the Income Statement. Net profit attributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 2007 was \$64,161,393 (2006: \$62,376,577).

Funds under management decreased by \$94,350,212 (2006: increased by \$184,988,266) to \$783,324,637 (2006: \$877,674,849). Funds under management from related managed investment schemes increased by \$38,950,000 (2006: \$77,239,000) to \$394,050,000 (2006: \$355,100,000).

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Directors' Report

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as follows:

	30 June 2007	30 June 2006
	\$	\$
Net operating income/(loss) before distributions	64,161,393	62,376,577
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders	(64,161,393)	(62,376,577)
(Increase) / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders	· ·	· · · · ·
Net profit	-	-

UNITS ON ISSUE

There were 783,324,637 units on issue at 30 June 2007 (2006: 877,674,849). During the year 253,296,241 units were issued by the Scheme (2006: 404,781,175) and 347,646,453 were withdrawn (2006: 219,782,909).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2007, the Scheme held assets to a total value of \$879,253,887 (2006: \$914,245,175). The basis for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATES

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on behalf of the Responsible Entity:

	2007	2006
	\$	\$
 Management fees for the financial year received directly from LM First Mortgage Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Limited Other expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity which are reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, including 	9,934,860	10,683,880
administration and custodian fees	386,755	794,401

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

During the year the Scheme's name was changed from LM Mortgage Income Fund to LM First Mortgage Income Fund.

In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme that occurred during the financial year under review.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Directors' Report

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

There has been no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may affect the Scheme's operations in future financial years, the results of those operations of the Scheme's state of affairs in future years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it would likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under a law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been no known significant breaches of any other environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided to either the officers of LM Investment Management Ltd or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of LM Investment Management Ltd act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the Scheme. The auditors of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 4.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy Director

Gold Coast

24 September 2007

ILERNST & YOUNG

■ 1 Eagle Street Brisbane QLD 4000 Australia

■ Tel 61 7 3011 3333 Fax 61 7 3011 3100

PO Box 7878 Waterfront Place Brisbane QLD 4001

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage Income Fund

In relation to our audit of the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2007, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Ernst & Young

Paul Marskie

Paula McLuskie

Partner

Brisbane

24 September 2007

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2007

		30 June	2007	30 June	2006
	Notes	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
		\$	\$	\$	S
Income					
Changes in the fair value of investments	3(a)	377,052	+	2,136,504	1,123,754
Interest revenue - loans and advances	3(b)	80,704,491	81,106,122	75,358,111	76,307,718
Interest revenue - cash assets	3(b)	3,449,423	3,424,562	2,220,819	2,201,006
Other income	3(a)	3,945,714	3,945,714	2,328,033	2,328,033
Total revenue and other income		88,476,680	88,476,398	82,043,467	81,960,511
Expenses					
Management fees	11	9,934,860	9,934,860	10,683,880	10,683,880
Custodian fees		185,054	185,054	305,059	305,059
Advisor commissions		3,856,517	3,856,517	4,180,916	4,180,916
Impairment losses on loans and receivables	9(d)	2,563,242	2,563,242	2,714,072	2,714,072
Finance costs		3,520,151	3,520,151	1,149,900	1,149,900
Legal fees		35,411	35,411	7,262	7,262
Other expenses	4	4,220,052	4,219,770	625,801	542,845
Total expenses excluding distributions to					
unitholders		24,315,287	24,315,005	19,666,890	19,583,934
Net profit attributable to unitholders		64,161,393	64,161,393	62,376,577	62,376,577
Distributions to unitholders	3(c)/7	(64,161,393)	(64,161,393)	(62,376,577)	(62,376,577)
Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders			•	-	-
Income tax expense		•	-	-	-
Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders after income tax expense	-	NAME OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PR	*	-	

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2007

		30 June	2007	30 June	2006
		Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
		\$	\$	\$	\$
	Notes				
ASSETS					
Cash and cash equivalents	13	28,593,772	28,332,244	32,995,697	32,645,002
Receivables	12	6,997,000	6,934,391	4,341,766	4,278,131
Prepayments		3,482,170	3,482,170	4,729,647	4,729,647
Investments	8	5,654,350)	5,659,827	1
Loans and receivables	9				872,592,39
		834,505,081	840,505,081	866,592,394	4
					914,245,17
TOTAL ASSETS		879,232,373	879,253,887	914,319,331	5
LIABILITIES					
Payables		481,752	503,266	946,819	977 663
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	10	90,466,662	90,466,662	30,416,662	872,663 30,416,662
Distributions payable	3(c)	4,959,322	4,959,322		
Distributions payable	3(0)	7,233,322	7,737,322	5,281,001	5,281,001
TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO					
UNITHOLDERS		95,907,736	95,929,250	36,644,482	36,570,326
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO					
UNITHOLDERS	6	783,324,637	783,324,637	877,674,849	877,674,84 9

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2007

Net assets of the Scheme that are attributable to unitholders are classified as a liability rather than equity. As a result there was no equity at the start or end of the year. A Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders is disclosed in note 6.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

CASH FLOW STATEMENT For the year ended 30 June 2007

		30 June 2007		30 June 2006		
	Notes	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme	
0.10		\$	\$	\$	\$	
Cash flows from operating activities						
Interest and distributions received		84,345,317	84,407,643	80,038,119	79,955,165	
Management fees paid		(10,467,111)	(10,467,111)	(11,631,560)	(11,631,561)	
Other operating expenses		(10,155,548)	(10,059,596)	(14,742,989)	(14,491,321)	
Other income received		1,611,118	1,547,484	3,287,894	3,287,894	
GST and withholding tax (paid)/received		(481,965)	(481,965)	911,414	911,414	
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from						
operating activities	13(b)	64,851,811	64,946,455	57,862,878	58,031,591	
Cash flows from investing activities						
Payments for secured mortgage loans		(435,242,800)	(435,242,800)	(575,024,453)	(610,919,745)	
Receipts from settled mortgage loans		464,782,349	464,776,872	316,057,835	411,700,381	
Payments for purchase of investments		•		(7,375,912)	(75,321,273)	
Receipts from sale of investments		-	•	40,321,273	48,000,000	
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing						
activities		29,529,549	29,524,072	(226,021,257)	(226,540,637)	
Cash flows from financing activities						
Proceeds from borrowings		60,050,000	60,050,000	30,416,662	30,416,662	
Receipts from the issue of units		236,754,786	236,754,786	387,598,304	387,598,304	
Distributions paid		(47,941,585)	(47,941,585)	(43,995,087)	(43,995,087)	
Payment for redemption of units		(347,646,486)	(347,646,486)	(219,782,909)	(219,782,909)	
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing	-					
activities		(98,783,285)	(98,783,285)	154,236,970	154,236,970	
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash	N	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			-5,,550,570	
equivalents		(4,401,925)	(4,312,758)	(13,921,409)	(14,272,103)	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of		, , ,	. , , -,	· - +- · · · + · **/	(: -)=	
the year	_	32,995,697	32,645,002	46,917,105	46,917,105	
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of						
the year	13(a)	28,593,772	28,332,244	32,995,697	32,645,002	

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund ("the Scheme") for the year ended 30 June 2007 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 24 September 2007.

The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999. The Scheme will terminate on 13 April 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme Constitution (as amended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated in the following text.

a) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicable Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation of investments in financial assets, which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost.

The balance sheet presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does not distinguish between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 – Presentation of Financial Statements.

b) Statement of compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ('AIFRS'). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS').

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been adopted for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2007 are shown in the following tables. None of the standards issued or amended have an impact on the accounting policies adopted by the Syndicate.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

AASB Amendment/ Standard	Title	Application date of standard	Application date for the Scheme.
2007-3	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8 [AASB 5, AASB 6, AASB 102, AASB 107, AASB 119, AASB 127, AASB 134, AASB 136, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]	1 January 2009	1 July 2009
2007-4	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from ED 151 and other Amendments [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 102, 107, 108, 110, 112, 114, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 139, 141, 1023, & AASB 1038]	1July 2007	1 July 2007
AASB 101	Presentation of Financial Statements	1 January 2007	1 July 2007
AASB 8	Operating Segments	1 January 2009	1 July 2009

The following amendments are not applicable to the Scheme and therefore have no impact.

AASB	Title
Amendment	
2007-1	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 11 [AASB 2]
2007-2	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB 1, AASB 117, AASB 18, AASB 120, AASB, 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139]

c) Basis of consolidation

This consolidated financial report comprises the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund and its subsidiary as at 30 June 2007 ("the consolidated entity"). The financial report of the subsidiary is prepared for the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all intercompany balances and income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.

d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(i) Significant accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. No judgements have been determined to be individually significant.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

(ii) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

Allowance for impairment loss on loans and receivables

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation of the value of future cash flows. The Scheme's policy for calculation of impairment losses is disclosed in Note 2(h)(ii).

e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

f) Income

Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Scheme and the income can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before income is recognised:

i) Dividend and distribution income

Dividend or distribution income is recognised when the shareholders' or unitholders' right to receive the payment is established.

ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

iii) Changes in the fair value of investments

Gains or losses on investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair value at sale, or at year end, and the fair value at the previous valuation point. This includes both realised and unrealised gains and losses.

g) Finance costs

Interest on borrowings is recognised in the income statement in the period to which it relates. Issue costs associated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they relate using the effective interest method.

II

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

h) Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The consolidated entity determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Scheme commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reporting period. An allowance is made for doubtful debts when there is objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be able to collect the receivables. Impairment losses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a result of future events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in relation to a loan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense in the income statement.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the Credit Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the collectibility of the debts is considered doubtful by estimation of expected losses in relation to loan portfolios where specific identification is impracticable.

The components of impaired assets are as follows:

"Loans in arrears" are loans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be able to collect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

"Assets acquired through the enforcement of security" are assets acquired in full or partial settlement of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

"Restructured loans" arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are removed from 'restructure loans' after a period of 12 months of performance against loan revised terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in 'loans in arrears' when impairment provisions are required.

i) Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders' investment advisors and are calculated as a percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related units are redeemed.

j) Payables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the balance sheet as unit holders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 June 2007 under the Scheme's Constitution.

k) Increase/decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable, expenses accrued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred income previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders.

1) Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme's Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of investments, realised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised. Capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains.

m) Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees, have been passed onto the Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC's) at a rate of 75%.

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the statement of financial performance net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

ATO is included in receivable in the balance sheet. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

n) Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme. Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed occurs. Unit redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of units on issue.

o) Income tax

Under current legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (ie Unitholders are presently entitled to the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset against any realised capital gains. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders.

p) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All toans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

3. FINANCE INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

a) Non-Interest income	30 June	2007	30 June 2006	
Changes in the fair value of investments	Consolidated \$ 377,052	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$ 2,136,504	Scheme \$ 1,123,754
Other income:				
Default management fees	3,497,077	3,497,077	2,112,240	2,112,240
Other income	448,637	448,637	215,793	215,793
	3,945,714	3,945,714	2,328,033	2,328,033

b) Interest income

			21	JU /		
	•	Consolidated			Scheme	
	Average balance \$	Income \$	Average rate %	Average balance S	Income \$	Average rate
Cash assets	61,964,147	3,449,423	5.57%	61,515,754	3,424,562	5.57%
Loans and advances	819,492,029	80,704,491	9.85%	819,992,024	77,480,436	9.89%
	881,456,176	84,153,914	9.55%	881,507,778	80,904,998	9.59%

	2006						
	(Consolidated		Scheme			
	Average	Average Average				Average	
	balance	Income	rate	balance	Income	rate	
	\$	\$	%	\$	\$	%	
Cash assets	40,199,809	2,220,819	5.52%	39,754,106	2,201,005	5.54%	
Loans and advances	728,142,186	75,358,111	10.65%	752,713,615	78,508,724	10.14%	
	768,341,995	77,578,930	10.10%	792,467,721	76,307,718	10.43%	

c) Distributions to unitholders	30 June	2007	30 June 2006	
	Consolidated	Scheme	Scheme Consolidated	
	\$	\$	\$	S
Distributions paid	59,202,071	59,202,071	56,555,576	56,555,576
Distributions payable	4,959,322	4,959,322	5,821,001	5,821,001
	64,161,393	64,161,393	62,376,577	62,376,577

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

4. OTHER EXPENSES	30 June	2007	30 June 2006	
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Loan origination expenses	3,381,487	3,381,487	172,620	172,620
Auditor's remuneration	196,441	196,441	90,265	90,265
Product disclosure statement production costs	134,413	134,413	57.734	57,734
Other expenses	507,711	507,430	305,182	222,226
	4,220,052	4,219,771	625,801	542,845

5. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION	30 June	2007	30 June 2006		
	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$	
Audit and review of the financial reports	182,464	182,464	75,740	75,740	
Other regulatory audit services	13,977	13,977	14,525	14,525	
	196,441	196,441	90,265	90,265	

These expenses have been included within 'Other Expenses' in the Income Statement.

6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

All units in the Scheme are attributed with a value of \$1. The units on issue in the Scheme and the consolidated entity are equal. Movements in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:

	30 June 2007 Scheme \$/#	30 June 2006 Scheme \$/#
Net assets attributable to unitholders		W
Class A		
Opening balance	522,574,849	414,815,583
Units issued during the year	65,204,786	219,907,304
Units redeemed during the year	(215,046,454)	(129,330,909)
Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions	16,541,489	17,182,871
Closing Balance	389,274,670	522,574,849
Class B		
Opening balance	355,100,000	277,861,000
Units issued during the year	171,550,000	167,691,000
Units redeemed during the year	(132,600,000)	(90,452,000)
Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions	•	_
Closing Balance	394,050,000	355,100,000

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

	<u> 30 Jur</u>	<u>1e 2007</u>	<u>30 June 2006</u>	
TOTAL	<u>#</u>	<u>\$</u>	#	<u>\$</u>
Opening balance	877,674,849	877,674,849	692,676,583	692,676,583
Units issued during the year	236,754,786	236,754,786	387,598,304	387,598,304
Units redeemed during the year	(347,646,453)	(347,646,453)	(219,782,909)	(219,782,909)
Units issued on reinvestment of			` ' '	. , , , , , , , ,
distributions	16,541,455	16,541,455	17,182,871	17,182,871
Transfers to and from the income		,	,,	
statement		_		*
Closing Balance	783,324,637	783,324,637	877,679,849	877,674,849

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitled to receive the declared distribution rate.

Class B consists of unit holders with an investment greater than \$1,000,000. The distribution rate will be determined by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to waive the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for this class of unit holders.

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per unit at unitholders' meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation.

7. DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

Distributions Class A			30 June 20 \$)07 30 Jun \$	30 June 2006 \$	
			34,369,	906 36.5	87,325	
Class B			29,791,		89,252	
		•	64,161,	395 62,3	76,577	
8. INVESTMENTS		2007	2007	2006	2006	
		Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme	
Financial assets held at fair value		\$	\$	\$	\$	
through profit and loss	(i)	5,654,350	-	5,659,827	_	
Investment in subsidiary	(ii)		1		1	
		5,654,350	1	5, 659,827	1	

- i). At 30 June 2007, the consolidated entity held 4,978,736 units in the PM Capital Enhanced Yield Fund (2006: 4,978,736). The unit price at 30 June 2007 was \$1.1357 (2006: \$1.1368).
- ii). The Scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of \$1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited at 30 June 2007.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES		ne 2007	30 Ju	ne 2006
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Secured Mortgage Loans	835,530,336	835,530,336	868,300,393	868,300,393
Other Unsecured Loans - related party	_	6,000,000	-	6,000,000
Provision for impairment	(1,025,255)	(1,025,255)	(1,707,999)	(1,707,999)
Net loans and advances	834,505,081	840,505,081	866,592,394	872,592,394
Aggregate amounts receivable from related parties				
Directors and director-related entities	-	-	-	_
Other related entities	-	6,000,000	-	6,000,000
Related managed investment schemes	-	-	-	-
Provision for impairment	-	-	-	_
		6,000,000	-	6,000,000
b) Maturity analysis – Secure Mortgage Loans	•			
Less than 3 months	201,435,919	201,435,919	170,717,544	170,717,544
3-6 months	144,628,228	144,628,228	152,224,418	152,224,418
6-12 months	54,191,912	54,191,912	361,643,592	361,643,592
12-18 months	224,938,707	224,938,707	89,620,092	89,620,092
18-24 months	49,981,868	49,981,868	10,716,137	10,716,137
24-36 months	68,573,704	68,573,704	32,691,153	32,691,153
36-48 months	51,154,823	51,154,823	10,610,549	10,610,549
48-60 months	40,625,175	40,625,175	40,076,908	40,076,909
	835,530,336	835,530,336	868,300,393	868,300,393
a) Companies of wish				

c) Concentration of risk

As at 30 June 2007 no individual loan was greater than 10% of net assets attributable to unit holders.

d) Provisions for impairment

The impairment loss expense relating to loans and receivables comprises:

Specific provision	1,543,070	1,543,070	1,707,999	1,707,999
Collective impairment provision	-	_	-	-
Impairment losses recognised directly in the				
Income Statement	1,020,172	1,020,172	1,006,073	1,006,073
	2,563,242	2,563,242	2,714,072	2,714,072

18
LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (cont)	30 June	2007	30 June 2006	
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
,	\$	\$	\$	\$
Specific Provision				
Opening balance	1,707,999	1,707,999	-	-
Impairment losses provided for during year	1,543,070	1,543,070	1,707,999	1,707,999
Utilisation of provisions (loans realised)	(2,225,814)	(2,225,814)	_	-
Closing balance	1,025,255	1,025,255	1,707,999	1,707,999
Collective impairment provision				
Opening balance	-	•	-	•
Impairment losses provided for during year	-	-	-	-
Closing balance	-	-	-	
TOTAL PROVISION	1,025,255	1,025,255	1,707,999	1,707,999

The collective provision for impairment is calculated by placing loans into pools with similar risk characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment.

Movement in Default loans

Gross default loans opening balance New and increased default loans Balances written off Returned to performing or repaid	42,661,029 103,145,841 (1,020,709) (60,959,777)	42,661,029 103,145,841 (1,020,709) (60,959,777)	8,158,730 35,508,371 (1,006,072)	8,158,730 35,508,371 (1,006,072)
Gross default loans closing balance Specific provision	83,826,384 (1,025,254)	83,826,384 (1,025,254)	42,661,029 (1,707,999)	42,661,029 (1,707,999)
Net default loans	82,801,130	82,801,130	40,953,030	40,953,030

Subsequent to balance date, default loans totalling \$18,005,763 have been repaid. Further, the Directors of the Responsible Entity are in the process of finalising the sale of secured property in relation to default loans totalling \$21,381,314 at balance date.

10. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

	30 June	30 June 2007		2006
	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$
Secured bank loan	90,446,662	90,446,662	30,416,662	30,416,662

In May 2007, the Scheme extended its financing agreement to access to \$150m for a period of 2 years, thereafter extendable at the bank's option (2006: \$100m). When drawn, the loan is secured by the assets of the Scheme and are repayable within 12 months.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

11. RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee directly from the Scheme.

Custodian

The Custodian of the Scheme is Trust Company of Australia Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited during the financial year are disclosed in Note 14.

Directors' remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity in connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 14.

Directors' holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end are set out below.

	30 June 2007		30 June 2006	
	Consolidated §	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$
- LM Investment Management Limited		-	192,138	192,138
- Directors and director related entities	20,017	20,017	-	***************************************
- Other Associates of LM Investment		394,050,00		
Management Limited	394,050,000	0	355,100,000	355,100,000

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 2007 the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its affiliates (2006: nil).

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities, may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests subsisting at year-end.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee for these services directly from Scheme assets.

During the year, LM Investment Management Limited was paid loan origination fees directly from borrowers. Loan origination fees received by the Scheme during the year were \$3,625,686 (2006: \$172,620) of which \$3,381,487 was reimbursed by the Scheme to the Responsible Entity for the administration of loan origination services (2006: \$172,620).

The Scheme owns 100% of the share capital of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited, an entity incorporated to invest in 'at call' securities on behalf of the Scheme. The Scheme advances unsecured, interest bearing funds to LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd. The interest rate charged on the loan approximates the return achieved from the investments undertaken on the Scheme's behalf. The RE does not receive any fees as a result of this loan. As at 30 June 2007, the net assets of LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd were nil (2006: nil) LM MIF Investment Pty Limited's net profit for the year was nil (2006: nil).

In June 2007, a related scheme, the LM Managed Performance Fund entered into a joint venture with an unrelated borrower of the Scheme. The Scheme has advanced \$4,725,000 to the LM Managed Performance Fund, which is secured by the assets of the unrelated borrower and by a guarantee from the LM Managed Performance Fund. This loan has been subject to the normal credit approval review procedures of the Scheme.

The LM Managed Performance Fund has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund totalling \$18,718,980 (2006: \$19,636,287). The LM Managed Performance Fund may on occasion pay development and construction costs on those related loans.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

	30 June	2007	30 June	e 200 6
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Total remuneration received or due and				-
receivable				
Fees for the year paid directly by the				
Scheme to LM Administration Pty Ltd	9,934,860	9,934,860	10,683,880	10,683,880
Fees earned by LM Administration Pty		,	,,	. 0,000,000
Ltd from other approved schemes				
invested in by Scheme.		_	_	
 Other expenses including administration 				
expenses incurred by the Responsible				
Entity, which are reimbursed to the		•		
Responsible Entity in accordance with				
the provisions of the Constitution.	386,755	386,755	489,342	489,342
Custodian's remuneration				,
Custodian's fees paid by the Scheme	185,054	185,054	305,059	305,059
Balance with related parties	- 55,50	100,001	302,033	303,039
Aggregate amounts receivable from related				
parties by the Scheme were as follows:				
LM Administration Pty Limited	2,793,556	2,793,556	3,869,587	3,869,587
(management fees prepaid by the			. ,	
Scheme)(i)				
 LM MIF Investments Pty Limited (ii) 	-	6,000,000	_	6,000,000
 Australian International Investments Pty Limited (iii) 	2,520,000	2,520,000	1,690,000	1,690,000

- i). These amounts are included in prepayments. No amounts are payable to related parties by the Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments during the year was \$7,204,945 (2006: \$3,504,032) which was non-interest bearing. Interest foregone on the above amount if calculated at the weighted average cash rate of 5.57% would have been \$401,315 (2006: \$194,123). If this revenue had been collected, the sum foregone would have been paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd as management fees during the year.
- ii). LM MIF Investments Pty Limited has an unsecured interest bearing loan with the Scheme. This facility was entered into on an arms length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.
- tii). Peter Charles Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Pty Ltd which is a joint borrower in a loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2007 for \$2,520,000 (2006: \$1,690,000). This transaction was approved on an arms length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited are set out below:

19.30 19.30 10.00 19.30 10.00 14.0	Entity	Investment at year end #	Interest held in the scheme at year end	Units issued during the year	Units redeemed during the year	Distributions paid and payable
Income Fund 161,500,000 19.30% 109,400,000 14,900,000 9,244,30	30 June 2007		•		<i>y</i>	
LM Institutional Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	LM Currency Protected Australian					
LM Institutional Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	Income Fund	161,500,000	19.30%	109,400,000	14.900.000	0 244 308
LM Managed Performance Fund 4,800,000 0.57% 22,100,000 22,400,000 716,57	LM Institutional Currency Protected	•			- 1,200,000	2,244,200
LM Managed Performance Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund LM Investment Management Ltd James and Pamela Craig 199,000,000 23.78% 8,000,000 92,000,000 18,914,20° 4,510 196,648 3,20° 325,705 8,828 1,251 1,000 1,000% 1,568 1,551 1,666 Harold Ward Total 20,017 0.00% 1,568 1,551 1,666 Total 394,070,017 47.09% 171,567,039 133,123,903 29,805,18° Entity Investment at year end ## scheme at year end war year end beld in the year end wholesale First Mortgage Units issued during the year year year Distributions paid and during the year year LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund LM Managed Performance Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund LM Investment Management Ltd 67,000,000 7.63% 61,395,000 8,785,000 871,807 8,785,000 871,807 2,546,668 871,807 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% 7.63% 85,500,000 7.63% 85,500,000 7.63% 85,500,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 871,807 61,395,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 61,395,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000 7.63% 878,000	Australian Income Fund	28,750,000	3.44%	32,050,000	3,300,000	916.401
LM Wholesale First Mortgage 199,000,000 23.78% 8,000,000 92,000,000 18,914,200	LM Managed Performance Fund	4,800,000	0.57%			
LM Investment Management Ltd -	LM Wholesale First Mortgage				22,100,000	7 10,072
LM Investment Management Ltd - 4,510 196,648 3,20° James and Pamela Craig - 10,961 325,705 8,828 Harold Ward 20,017 0.00% 1,568 1,551 1,66° Total 394,070,017 47.09% 171,567,039 133,123,903 29,805,18° Entity Investment at year end wheld in the during the year end year end year end wheld in the year end year end year LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund 67,000,000 7.63% 61,395,000 8,785,000 2,546,668 LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - - - James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36	Income Fund	199,000,000	23.78%	8.000.000	92,000,000	18 914 207
James and Pamela Craig	LM Investment Management Ltd	_	-			
Harold Ward 20,017 0.00% 1,568 1,551 1,666	James and Pamela Craig	**	-			•
Total 394,070,017 47,09% 171,567,039 133,123,903 29,805,187	Harold Ward	20,017	0.00%	*		-
Entity Investment at year end with the during the year of the payable year end beld in the year end year end year end year end year end year of the year of the year year end year year end year year end year year year end year year year year year end year year year year year year year year	Total	394,070,017	47.09%			···
at year end ## scheme at year during the year during the year of the payable year end year end year end year during the year of the payable year end year end year of the payable year end year end year year end year of the payable year end year end year end year year end ye						27,000,107
at year end ## scheme at year during the year during the year of during the year during the year of during t	Entity	Investment	Interest	Unite icenad	¥ Imiro	Fat
# scheme at year during the year 30 June 2006 LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36	•				_ · · · · · · -	DISTRIBUTIONS
30 June 2006 LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund 67,000,000 7.63% 61,395,000 8,785,000 2,546,668 LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02%		AND AGARD MARKET	meia in the	disting the	rodoomad	
36 June 2006 LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund 67,000,000 7.63% 61,395,000 8,785,000 2,546,668 LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - 14,832 James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36				_		-
Income Fund 67,000,000 7.63% 61,395,000 8,785,000 2,546,668 LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage 1ncome Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - - - - James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36			scheme at	_	during the	-
Income Fund 67,000,000 7.63% 61,395,000 8,785,000 2,546,668 LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage 1ncome Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - - - - James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36	30 June 2006		scheme at	_	during the	-
LM Managed Performance Fund 5,100,000 0.58% 20,420,000 17,840,000 871,807 LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - - - 14,832 James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36			scheme at	_	during the	-
LM Wholesale First Mortgage 283,000,000 32.24% 85,500,000 59,500,000 22,271,669 LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - - 14,832 James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36	LM Currency Protected Australian	#	scheme at year end	year	during the year	payable
LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% 22,271,669 James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36	LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	# 67,000,000	scheme at year end 7.63%	year 61,395,000	during the year 8,785,000	payable 2,546,668
LM Investment Management Ltd 192,138 0.02% - - - - - 14,832 James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36 Total 365,000 - 36	LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund LM Managed Performance Fund	# 67,000,000	scheme at year end 7.63%	year 61,395,000	during the year 8,785,000	payable
James and Pamela Craig 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832 Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36 Total 255,000 - 36	LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund LM Managed Performance Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage	# 67,000,000 5,100,000	7.63% 0.58%	year 61,395,000 20,420,000	8,785,000 17,840,000	2,546,668 871,807
Harold Ward 20,041 0.00% 20,000 - 36	LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund LM Managed Performance Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund	# 67,000,000 5,100,000 283,000,000	7.63% 0.58%	year 61,395,000 20,420,000	8,785,000 17,840,000	payable 2,546,668
Total	LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund LM Managed Performance Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund LM Investment Management Ltd	# 67,000,000 5,100,000 283,000,000 192,138	7.63% 0.58% 32.24% 0.02%	year 61,395,000 20,420,000 85,500,000	8,785,000 17,840,000	2,546,668 871,807 22,271,669
355,626,922 40.51% 167,635,000 86,125,000 5,705,012	LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund LM Managed Performance Fund LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund LM Investment Management Ltd James and Pamela Craig	# 67,000,000 5,100,000 283,000,000 192,138 314,743	7.63% 0.58% 32.24% 0.02% 0.04%	year 61,395,000 20,420,000 85,500,000 300,000	8,785,000 17,840,000	2,546,668 871,807 22,271,669

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

12. RECEIVABLES	30 June	2007	30 June	e 2006
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Interest and distribution receivable	62,609	••	212,146	148,511
Mortgage interest receivable	1,899,384	1,899,384	1,808,959 1,	1,808,959
Penalty interest receivable	114,776	114,776	82,163	82,163
Default management fees receivable	4,834,917	4,834,917	2,112,240	2,112,240
GST receivable	85,314	85,314	121,769	121,769
Other	-	-	4,489	4,489
	6,997,000	6,934,391	4,341,766	4,278,131

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

- Cash at bank and in hand

	30 June	2007	30 June	30 June 2006		
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme		
	\$	\$	\$. \$		
a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equiva	lents					
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and C	ash Flow Statemer	it, cash and o	ash equivalents cor	nprise:		

28,593,772 28,332,244

32,995,697

32,645,002

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is \$28,593,772 (2006: \$32,995,697).

b) Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to unitholders to net cash flows from operating activities

	30 Jun	e 2007	30 Jun	e 2006
	Consolidated	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$	\$
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	•	-		-
Adjustments for:				
Non cash impairment expense	2,563,242	2,562,242	2,714,072	2,714,072
Distributions to unitholders	64,161,393	64,161,393	62,376,577	62,376,577
(Increase)/decrease in interest and				
distribution receivable	(2,908,324)	(2,845,715)	(6,064,088)	(5,820,918)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables	1,500,567	1,436,935	(1,100,004)	(1,100,004)
Increase/(decrease) in payables	(465,067)	(369,400)	(63,679)	(138,136)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities	64,851,811	64,946,455	57,862,878	58,031,591

c) Reinvestment of distributions

During the financial year, the Scheme issued 16,541,489 units (2006: 17,182,871) as a result of reinvestment of distribution by unitholders totalling \$16,541,489 (2006: \$17,182,871). These transactions have not been included in the Cash Flow Statement.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

14. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

(a) Details of Key Management Personnel

(i) Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible Entity. The Directors of the responsible entity during the year were:

Executive directors

Mr Peter Charles Drake

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 31 January 1997

Appointed 15 September 2003

Appointed 22 June 2006 Appointed 30 September 2006

Non-executive directors

Mr John Dillon

Mr John Vallander Llewellyn

Appointed 8 June 2005 Appointed 1 June 2007

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

(i) Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM Investment Management Ltd as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directly from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme. The remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP's cost of remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these costs (for disclosure purposes only) are discussed below.

(ii) Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd are responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Responsible Entity.

It is the Executive Directors' policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

(iii) Non-executive directors

Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This takes into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Directors are not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and conditions.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007

(iv) Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been allocated to each scheme. The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly across all schemes.

Notes to the financial statements 30 June 2007 LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Remuneration of KMP É

2007		Primary		Post Employment	loyment				
Specified KMP	Salary & Fees	Cash Bonus	Monetary Benefits	Super	Retirement Benefits	Equity	Other	TOTAL	Total performance related
Drake, PC*	((A)	est	ØI.	€3 1	698	Øi	ধ্যা	%
Darcy, LM**	23,488	•	•	2,114	ı		1 1	25 602	
van der Hoven, E	17,532	•	•	1.578	t	1	٠	19,110	•
Mulder, Francene	11,139	ŧ		1,002	•	ŧ	,	12 141	ı
Dillon, J	2,500	•	•	255	•	,	٠	2725	•
Llewellyn, JV	173	٠	•	16	1	ţ		189	• 1
	54,832	-		4,965	1		-	59,867	•
2006		Primary		Post Employment	loyment	Management of the second of th			The state of the s
Specified KMP	Salary & Fees	Cash Bonus	Nonetary Monetary Benefits	Super	Retirement Benefits	Equity	Other	TOTAL	Total performance related
Drake. PC*	લ્કા	બ લ	(1 7)	v ≥t	W I	€AI	ક્યા	ક્કા	%
Darcy, LM**	18,107	, ;	. ,	1,630	, ,			10 717	i
van der Hoven, E	284	1	,	26		ŧ	ı	310	t
Сате, М	3,034	,	•	273	1	,	•	3 307	ı
Dillon, J	2,519		,	227	1	•	t	2,746	(É
į	23,944	•		2,156	*	-	1	26,100	*

* Peter Charles Drake is the beneficial owner of 100% of the ordinary shares of the Responsible Entity. No salary and wages are paid to Peter Drake directly from the

company or any of the schemes.

** As executives of the Responsible Entity, LM Darcy and E van de Hoven are entitled to a termination benefit that is payable on cessation of employment or a significant change in ownership of the company. No amount has been reflected in the above disclosures in relation to this potential future benefit.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

	2007 Consolidated \$	2007 Scheme \$	2006 Consolidated \$	2006 Scheme \$
Short term	54,832	54,832	23,944	23,944
Post employment	4,965	4,965	2,156	2,156
Other long term		_	, <u>.</u>	-,
Termination benefits	-	-	-	
Equity based payment	-	_	_	**
Other		-	_	-
	59,867	59,867	26,100	26,100

Loans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their related entities during the period.

(c) Other Transactions and Balances with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party note 11, the Scheme has no other transactions and balances with specified KMP.

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Scheme's principal financial instruments comprise units in managed investment schemes, investments in secured mortgages, net assets attributable to unitholders, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to generate a return on the investment made by unitholders.

The Scheme also has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Scheme's financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Responsible Entity reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, are summarised below.

Z,

to the financial of the second Fund

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk exposures

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Scheme and consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, is set out below:

CONSOLIDATED

	Note	Weig aver intered	Weighted average interest rate	Floating In	Floating Interest Rate	Fixed is Securities contracted to mature in less than I year	Fixed int nutracted to s than I year	Fixed interest rate ted to Securities contracted to I year mature in more than I year	utracted to e than I year	Total	Ē
		2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007 2006	n 5 years 2006	2007	2006
Cash assets Secured mortgage loans (gross)	13(b) 9	5.57	5.52	28,593,772	32,995,697		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	1 1	•	28,593,772	32,995,697
Loan facility	10	6.44	5.47	(90,416,662) (30,416,662)	(30,416,662)	-	-	455,274,277 183,714,839	183,714,839	835,530,336 868,300,393 (90,416,662) (30,416,662)	868,300,393
Total			•	(61,822,890)	2,579,035	400,256,059	684,585,554	2,579,035 400,256,059 684,585,554 435,274,277 183,714,839 773,707,446 870,879,428	183,714,839	773,707,446	870,879,428

All other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

SCHEME

		Wei	Weighted	Floating In	Floating Interest Rate		Fixed int	Fixed interest rate			***
	Note	ave	average interest rate			Securities contracted to mature in less than 1 year	ontracted to s than I year	Securities contracted to mature in more than I year but less than 5 years	ntracted to e than I year in 5 years		Í
		2007	200 6 %	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006
Cash assets Secured mortgage loans (gross)		5.57 9.89	5.54	28,332,244	32,645,002	400,256,059	400,256,059 684,585,554	435.274.277	- 183 714 839	28,332,244	32,645,002
Unsecured loan Loan facility	0 6	6.5 6.44	6.5 5.47	- (90,416,662)	- 1,416,662) (30,416,662)	6 1	1 1	000,000,9		6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 60,416,660	6,000,000 6
Total				(62,084,418)	1	400,256,059	684,585,554	2,228,340 400,256,059 684,585,554 441,274,277 189,714,839 779,445,918 876,528,733	189,714,839	779,445,918	876,528,733

All other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

b) Credit risk exposure

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted. The total credit risk for recognised items including securities is therefore limited to the amount carried on the statement of financial position.

Recognised financial instruments

The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by:

- undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
- dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;
- obtaining independent valuations for all loans; and
- maintaining an average loan to valuation ratios not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2007	2006
0.00%	1.27 %
20.30%	25.98 %
15.37%	14.70 %
0.00%	0.39 %
8.82%	9.9 %
2.13%	4.17 %
0.00%	0.00 %
1.92%	18.50 %
34.58%	12.31 %
5.35%	4.30 %
5.18%	1.58 %
0.00%	6.71 %
5.63%	0.19 %
	-
100.00%	100.00 %
	0.00% 20.30% 15.37% 0.00% 8.82% 2.13% 0.00% 1.92% 34.58% 5.35% 5.18% 0.00% 5.63%

As at 30 June 2007 66.0% of the balance of mortgage loans is secured on construction/development property (2006: 60.5%) and 34.0% on commercial property (2006: 39.4%).

The Scheme's maximum credit risk exposure at balance date in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying value of these assets as indicated in the statement of financial position. No single mortgage investment exceeds 10% of the Scheme which ensures that there is no concentration of risk.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2007

c) Liquidity and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to investment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme as adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover any unusual obligations and that liquidity is managed within the Scheme's policies and limits.

d) Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The Scheme's financial assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position are carried at amounts that approximate net fair value

16. COMPOSITION OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

On 22 December 2005, LM First Mortgage Income Fund acquired 100% ownership of LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd, an unlisted company based in Australia newly formed on 22 December 2005.

From the date of acquisition, LM MIF Investment Pty Ltd has contributed nil to the net profit of the consolidated entity.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business segment

The Scheme is organised into one main business segment which operates solely in the business of investment management within Australia. The Scheme operates from Australia (the geographical segment).

(b) Geographic segments

The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Australian.

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2007.

19. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the consolidated entity disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007 or on the results and cash flows of the consolidated entity for the year ended on that date.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, I state that:

- a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out on pages 5 to 31 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and
 - (ii) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme's financial position as at 30 June 2007, and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.
- b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and
- c) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitution.

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy

Director

Gold Coast

24 September 2007

ILERNST&YOUNG

■ 1 Eagle Street Brisbane QLD 4000 Australia

> PO Box 7878 Waterfront Place Brisbane QLD 4001

#Tel 61 7 3011 3333 Fax 61 7 3011 3100

Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of LM First Mortgage Income Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund, which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2007, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the scheme and the entity it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the responsible entity of the scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2, the directors also state that the financial report, comprising the consolidated/parent financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the scheme's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the scheme's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

ERNST&YOUNG

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We have given to the directors of the responsible entity of the scheme a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors' report.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion:

- 1. the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM First Mortgage Income Fund and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2007 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
- 2. the consolidated/parent financial statements and notes or financial report also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 2.

Emsta Yang

Ernst & Young

1 ---

Paula McLuskie Partner

Brisbane

24 September 2007

Australian Securities & **Investments Commission**



Form 388

Corporations Act 2001 294, 295, 298-300, 307, 308, 319, 321, 322 Corporations Regulations 1.0.08

Conv of financial st

Company/scheme details	Company/scheme name	-
	LM FIRST MORTGACIE INCOME FUND	
	ACN/ARBN/ARSN/PIN/ABN	
•	089 343 288	
Lodgement details	Who should ASIC contact if there is a query about this form?	
•	Firm/organisation	
	LM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LTD	~
	Contact name/position description	
	CIRANT FISCHER (CFO)	
	ASIC registered agent number (if applicable)	
	N/A	
	Telephone number	
	(O1) 55 84 4 500 Postal address or DX address	
	POBOX 485	
	SURFERS PARADISE QLD 4217	
ck appropriate box.	A public company or a disclosing entity which is not a registered scheme or prescribed interest undertaking	(A)
ee Guide for definition of large and small oprietary companies.	A registered scheme	(B)
	Amendment of financial statements or directors' report (company)	(C)
	Amendment of financial statements or directors' report (registered scheme)	(D)
	A large proprietary company that is not a disclosing entity	(H)
	A small proprietary company that is controlled by a foreign company for all or part of the period and where the company's profit or loss for the period is not covered by the statements lodged with ASIC by a registered foreign company, company, registered scheme, or disclosing entity	(1)
	A small proprietary company that is requested by ASIC to prepare and lodge statements and reports	(J)
	A prescribed interest undertaking that is a disclosing entity	(K)
tes on which financial year begins d ends	Financial year begins O I / O	
	DIA TO BEST OF THE STATE OF THE	

ASIC Form 388

8 October 2008

Page 1 of 4

2 Details of large propr	ieta	ry company
See Guide for definition of large and sma-	H	the company is a large proprietary company that is not a disclosing entity please complete the fellowing in
proprietary companies.		and of the shalloar year for which the inlandar statements relate:
	A	What is the consolidated revenue of the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?
	8	What is the value of the consolidated gross assets of the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?
	С	How many employees are employed by the large proprietary company and the entities that it controls?
	D	HOW many members described as a few laws and a few
	D	How many members does the large proprietary company have?
Auditor's report		
	Wer	re the financial statements audited?
		─X _{Yes}
		. □ No
		If no, is there a class order exemption current for audit relief?
		promj
		∐ Yes
		L. No
· ·	⁻lf yes	s, does the auditor's report (s308) for the financial year contain a statement of:
		Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to the matters referred to in s307?
		Yes
		⊠ No
		Details of the deficiency, failure or shortcoming concerning any matter referred to in s307?
		Yes
		No
		F-3-110
etails of current audit		
egistered schemes must advise ASIC	Audito	or registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company)
egistered schemes must advise ASIC the appointment of an auditor on a orm 5137 <i>Appointment of scheme auditor</i>	L	
14 days of the appointment of the	Famil	y name Given name
or,		
	or	
	Comp	pany name
	E	RNST & YOUNG
	ACN/A	
		52 881 727 49
	OI.	
	Firm n	name (if applicable)
-	`	

ASIC Form 388

8 October 2008

Page 2 of 4

4 Continued Details of	current auditor or auditors			
	Office, unit, level			
	WATERFRONT PLACE			
	Street number and Street name			
	1 EAGLE STREET			
	Suburt/City State/Territory			
	BRISBANE			
	Postcode Country (if not Australia			
	4000			
	Date of appointment O I / I O S [D D] / M M / [Y Y]			
company may have two appointed ditors, provided that both auditors were	Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorised audit company)			
pointed on the same date. Otherwise, ar pointed auditor must resign, be removed	Family name Given name			
otherwise ceased before a subsequent				
pointment may be made.	or			
	Company name			
	,			
	ACN/ABN			
	or			
	or Firm name (if applicable)			
	тип наме (паррисале)			
	Office unit lovel			
	Office, unit, level			
	Street number and Street name			
	Suburb/City State/Territory			
	Postcode Country (if not Australia			
	- CONTRACT			
Statements and reports	to be attached to this form			
1				
	Financial statements for the year (as per s295(2) and accounting standards) Income statement for the year			
	Balance sheet as at the end of the year			
	Statement of cash flows for the year			
	Statement of changes in equity or statement of recognised income and expense for the year			
	If required by accounting standards - the consolidated income statement, balance sheet, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity/statement of recognised income and expense			
	Notes to financial statements (as per s295(3)) Disclosures required by the regulations			
	Notes required by the accounting standards			
	Any other information necessary to give a true and fair view (see \$297)			
	The directors' declaration about the statements and notes (as per s295(4))			
	The directors' report for the year, including the auditor's independence declaration (as per s298 to s300A)			
	Auditor's report required under s308 and s314			
(Concise report (if any) (s314)			
Form 388	8 October 2008			

Page 3 of 4

Signature	I certify that the attached documents marked (s319 of the Corporations Act 2001.) are a true copy of the original reports required to be lodged under
See Guide for details of signatory.	5319 of the Colporations Act 2001.	·
,	Name LISA DARCY	
	Signature 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	01/
	Capacity Director Company secretary	
	Date signed Do o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o	
odgement	Send completed and signed forms to: Australian Securities and Investments Commission, PO Box 4000, Gippsland Mail Centre VIC 3841.	For help or more information Telephone 1300 300 630 Email info.enquiries@asic.gov.eu
	Or lodge the form electronically by visiting the ASIC www.asic.gov.au	

Annexure A

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report

For the year ended 30 June 2009

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report – 30 June 2009

Contents

DIRECTORS' REPORT	
AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION	
INCOME STATEMENT	
DALANCE SHEET	(
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	(
CASH FLOW STATEMENT	
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION	4 **
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT	40
	4X

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Ltd (ABN 68 077 208 461). The Responsible Entity's registered office is Level 4, RSL Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Directors' Report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund, present their report of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund ("the Scheme") for the year ended 30 June 2009. The directors' report is not part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the year or since the end of the year and up to the date of this report:

Period of directorship Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997 Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003 Mr John Dillon Appointed 8 June 2005; resigned 28 August 2008 Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006 Ms Francene Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006 Mr John Vallander Llewellyn Appointed 1 June 2007; resigned 1 July 2008 Mr John O'Sullivan Appointed 27 November 2007 Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders' funds in registered first mortgages and cash investments in Australia, in accordance with the Scheme's Constitution and in accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the current product disclosure document.

The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.

SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999. The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the Responsible Entity since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

During the year the Scheme continued to invest in registered first mortgage loans secured by property in Australia and cash assets.

The Scheme performed well during the year and delivered to investors rates of interest greater than cash and a stable unit price of \$1.00. The net profit attributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 2009 was \$39,577,872 (2008: \$49,797,814).

During 2009, the Scheme was and continues to be impacted by events surrounding the global credit crisis. Lack of liquidity in the finance sector first saw a general slowdown in repayment of loans from those borrowers who were relying on refinances from other institutions to repay their loans to the Scheme.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Directors' Report

Secondly, the introduction of the Australian Government Guarantee on bank deposits in Australia and in other countries has also impacted the Scheme with an increase in withdrawal requests received from members following the implementation of the guarantee.

Thirdly, a reflection of the credit crisis resulted in the Schemes external financier requiring its loan facility to be repaid in priority to most investor redemptions.

The directors have negotiated an extension to the loan facility up until June 2010 and the directors believe the Scheme will be able to meet its obligations to the financier under the current repayment plan through repayment of existing loans.

These three events in combination with the continuation of unprecedented general market conditions and the lack of liquidity within the banking sectors investment capital has seen the Scheme suspend the payment of redemptions as per its constitution and in order to protect investor capital.

Total assets under management were \$630,789,449 as at 30 June 2009 (2008: \$634,110,877). Investor funds under management increased during the year by \$14,588,808 (2008: decreased by \$301,946,394). Investor funds under management invested by related managed investment schemes in LM FMIF increased by \$12,471,300 (2008: decreased by \$175,300,000) to \$231,221,300 (2008: \$218,750,000).

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as follows:

	30 June 2009	30 June 2008
	\$	S
Net operating income/(loss) before distributions	39,577,872	49,797,814
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders	(39,271,910)	(51,289,597)
(Increase) / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders	(305,962)	1,491,783
Net profit/(loss)	*	-
•		

UNITS ON ISSUE

There were 495,661,089 units on issue at 30 June 2009 (2008: 481,418,849). During the year 95,766,741 units were issued by the Scheme (2008: 157,043,148) and 81,524,501 were withdrawn (2008: 458,948,936).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2009, the Scheme held assets to a total value of \$630,789,449 (2008: \$634,110,877). The basis for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on behalf of the Responsible Entity:

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Directors' Report

		2009	2008
		\$	\$
•	Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration Pty Ltd	10310,762	5,801,477
•	Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Investment Management Pty Ltd	(5,100,000)	•
•	Expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity and its associated entities which are reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's		
	Constitution, including administration and custodian fees		
•	Expenses incurred by LM Administration Pty Ltd which are reimbursed	**	-
	in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitution, including administration and custodian fees	960,259	826,743
	Loan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme that		
	were reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for the administration of loan origination services	2,194,460	9,410,607

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

From 3 March 2009, the Scheme ceased accepting any applications for investments in the fund from any persons who were not an existing member in the Scheme. In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme that occurred during the financial year under review.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 20 of the financial report there has been no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may affect the Scheme's operations in future financial years, the results of those operations of the Scheme's state of affairs in future years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it would likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under a law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been no known significant breaches of any other environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND Directors' Report

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided to either the officers of LM Investment Management Ltd or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of LM Investment Management Ltd act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the Scheme. The auditors of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 7.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy Director

Gold Coast

30 September 2009



1 Eagle Street Brisbane QLD 4000 Australia GPO Box 7878 Brisbane QLD 4001

Tel: +61 7 3011 3333 Fax: +61 7 3011 3100 www.ey.com/au

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage Income Fund

In relation to our audit of the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund, for the financial year ended 30 June 2009, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001* or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Emoter Young

Ernst & Young

PHLUSKIE

Paula McLuskie Partner Brisbane 30 September 2009

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2009

		30 June 2009	30 June 2008	
	Notes	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$
Income		•	4	T.
Changes in the fair value of investments	3(a)	-	28,379	
Interest revenue - loans and advances	3(b)	68,475,219	81,612,059	81,645,183
Interest revenue - cash assets	3(b)	238,603	1,504,559	1,501,881
Other income	3(a)	10,898,863	2,005,949	2,005,949
Total revenue and other income		79,612,685	85,150,946	85,153,013
Expenses				
Management fees	12	15,410,762	5,801,477	5,801,477
Custodian fees		123,356	157,876	157,876
Advisor commissions		2,167,826	2,640,504	2,640,504
Impairment losses on loans and receivables	9(d)	5,056,938	6,154,911	6,157,884
Finance costs	4(a)	14,082,356	10,380,397	10,380,397
Legal fees		69,789	36,949	36,949
Foreign exchange losses		91,131	-	
Other expenses	4 _	3,032,655	10,181,018	10,180,112
Total expenses excluding distributions to				
unitholders	_	40,034,813	35,353,132	35,355,199
Net profit attributable to unitholders		39,577,872	49,797,814	49,797,814
Distributions to unitholders	3(c)/7 _	(39,271,910)	(51,289,597)	(51,289,597)
Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders		305,962	(1,491,783)	(1,491,783)
Income tax expense		-	-	-
Changes in net assets attributable to unitholders after income tax expense	-	305,962	(1,491,783)	(1,491,783)
¥	*****	200,704	1,771,7037	(1,471,703)

BALANCE SHEET As at 30 June 2009

		30 June 2009	30 June 2008	
		Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
		\$	\$	\$
	Notes			
ASSETS				
Cash and cash equivalents	14	1,154,822	14,643,332	14,643,332
Receivables	13	17,318,697	4,797,790	4,797,789
Prepayments	12	6,269,970	7,845,017	7,845,017
Investments	8	ŀ	•	1
Loans and receivables	9	606,045,959	606,824,738	606,824,738
TOTAL ASSETS	•	630,789,449	634,110,877	634,110,877
LIABILITIES				
Payables	10	1,051,369	878,796	878,796
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	11	133,000,000	150,000,000	150,000,000
Distributions payable	3(c)	2,234,098	3,305,015	3,305,015
Fair value of forward exchange contracts	` ′	28,714	40,606	40,606
TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS	_	136,314,181	154,224,417	154,224,417
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS	6	494,475,268	479,886,460	479,886,460

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Net assets of the Scheme that are attributable to unitholders are classified as a liability rather than equity. As a result there was no equity at the start or end of the year. A Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders is disclosed in Note 6.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT For the year ended 30 June 2009

		30 June 2009	30 June 2008	
	Notes	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
		\$	\$	\$
Cash flows from operating activities				
Interest and distributions received		14,989,628	22,918,375	22,827,388
Management fees paid		(14,693,802)	(9,724,881)	(9,724,881)
Other operating expenses		(3,247,801)	(17,970,388)	(17,990,996)
Other income received		17,833	4,231,876	4,229,198
GST and withholding tax (paid)/received		291,402	729,911	729,911
Finance costs paid		(13,869,073)	(10,169,709)	(10,169,709)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from				
operating activities	14(b)	(16,511,813)	(9,984,816)	(10,099,089)
Cash flows from investing activities				
Payments for secured mortgage loans		(117,016,006)	(320,147,455)	(320,117,304)
Receipts from settled mortgage loans		163,133,558	611,498,185	611,843,835
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		
activities		46,117,552	291,350,730	291,726,531
Cash flows from financing activities				
Proceeds from / (repayments) of borrowings		(17,000,000)	59,533,338	59,533,338
<u>.</u>		20.040.co		
Receipts from the issue of units		88,028,697	145,782,718	145,782,718
Distributions paid		(32,598,445)	(41,683,474)	(41,683,474)
Payment for redemption of units		(81,524,501)	(458,948,936)	(458,948,936)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing	-			
activities		(43,094,249)	(295,316,354)	(295,316,354)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash	•			
equivalents		(13,488,510)	(13,950,440)	(13,688,912)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of			(- <i></i>	\
the year		14,643,332	28,593,772	28,332,244
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of				
the year	14(a)	1,154,822	14,643,332	14,643,332

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund ("the Scheme") for the year ended 30 June 2009 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 30 September 2009.

The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999. The Scheme will terminate on 13 April 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme Constitution (as amended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Scheme are described in the Directors' report.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated in the following text.

a) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*, which includes applicable Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation of investments in financial assets, which have been measured at fair value or amortised cost.

The balance sheet presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does not distinguish between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 – Presentation of Financial Statements.

Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis the Scheme is a going concern. During the financial year the Responsible Entity was able to negotiate an extension to its external financing facilities until 3.1 July 2009, with a requirement for the full balance to be repaid in instalments, in priority to any redemptions over this period. The Scheme was unable to make the required repayments constituted a breach of its covenants and therefore the Scheme was in default under the facility as at 30 June 2009.

As detailed in Note 11, since the 30 June 2009 the Responsible Entity negotiated extended terms for the \$150 million facility that had matured. This facility agreement provides a revised facility of \$128 million, being the balance of the loan as at 4 September 2009, with a requirement for repayments to be made quarterly with the full principal balance to be repaid by or on 30 June 2010, in priority to any

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

redemptions, except for hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor distributions and fund expenses.

The facility agreement requires the Scheme to repay 60% of all net proceeds to the external financer, being the cash received from the realisation of assets with minimum cumulative quarterly repayment amount as detailed below:

	Minimum quarterly repayment	Reduced commitment and principal outstanding
30 November 2009	15,000,000	113,000,000
28 February 2010	15,000,000	98,000,000
31 May 2010	15,000,000	83,000,000

As at the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with all loan covenants in the facility agreement and has repaid the first \$2.7 million required in the period to 30 November 2009.

There remains some uncertainty in the financial and property markets that may impact the timing of future cash flows. The directors believe the Scheme will be able to meet its remaining obligations under the repayment plan through repayment of existing loans including the refinancing of existing loans with alternative financing providers; the repayment of loans from related entities; the repayment of the prepaid management fee from LM Administration Pty Ltd; or the continued support from the external financier or the securing of alternate sources of finance.

On this basis the directors believe the Scheme is a going concern and hence the financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Scheme not continue as a going concern.

b) Statement of compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ('AIFRS'). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes thereto, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been adopted for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2009 are shown in the following tables. None of the standards issued or amended have an impact on the accounting policies adopted by the Scheme.

Reference	Title	Summary	Application date of	Impact on Scheme financial report	Application date for
AASB 8 and AASB 2007-3	Operating Segments + consequential amendments to other standards	New standard replacing AASB 114 Segment Reporting, which adopts a management reporting approach to segment reporting.	standard*	AASB 8 is a disclosure standard so will have no direct impact on the amounts included in the Scheme's financial statements. The amendments may have an impact on the Scheme's segment disclosures.	Scheme* 1 July 2009
AASB 123 (Revised) and AASB 2007-6	Borrowing Costs + consequential amendments to other standards	Removes expensing option so all borrowing costs associated with a qualifying asset be capitalised.	1 January 2009	The Scheme has not yet determined the extent of the impact of the amendments, if any.	1 July 2009
AASB 101 (Revised) and AASB 2007-8	Presentation of Financial Statements + consequential amendments to other standards	Introduces a statement of comprehensive income. Changes to the titles of the financial statements. Requires a "third" or opening comparative balance sheet in some circumstances	1 January 2009	These amendments are only expected to affect the presentation of the Scheme's financial report and will not have a direct impact on the measurement and recognition of amounts disclosed in the financial report. The Scheme has not determined at this stage whether to present a single statement of comprehensive income or two separate statements.	1 July 2009
AASB 2008-5	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project	The improvements project is an annual project that provides a mechanism for making non-urgent, but necessary, amendments to IFRSs. Includes over 20 amendments. Some changes affect measurement of transactions, and others are just editorial. Relates to annual improvements process 2008 (most of 2007 ED)	l January 2009	The Scheme has not yet determined the extent of the impact of the amendments, if any.	I July 2009

Reference	Title Further Amendments	Summary Refer to AASB 2008-5 above.	Application date of standard*	Impact on Scheme financial report	Application date for Scheme*
2008-6	to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project	These amendments commence at a later date than the standard above	1 July 2009	The Scheme has not yet determined the extent of the impact of the amendments, if any.	1 July 2009
AASB 2009-2	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendments to AASB 7)	Various changes. Includes fair values disclosed on a tiered basis. Also changes to contractual maturity analysis disclosures.	I January 2009 (not mandatory if short financial year that starts on or after I January 2009 but ends before 30 April 2009)	The Scheme has not yet determined the extent of the impact of the amendments, if any.	t July 2009
AASB 2009- 4	Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project	Continues the Annual Improvements Process / Project. With AASB 2009-5 includes approx. 15 amendments. Relates to annual improvements process 2009 (2008 ED and some from 2007 ED)	l July 2009	The Scheme has not yet determined the extent of the impact of the amendments, if any.	1 July 2009
AASB 2009-	Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project	Continues the Annual Improvements Process / Project. With AASB 2009-4 includes approx. 15 amendments. Relates to annual improvements process 2009 (2008 ED and some from 2007 ED)	1 Jan 2010	The Scheme has not yet determined the extent of the impact of the amendments, if any.	1 July 2010

^{*}designates the beginning of the applicable annual reporting period unless otherwise stated

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

The following standards have been amended, however they do not affect the Scheme:

- AASB 2008-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard Share-based Payments: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
- AASB 3 (Revised) and AASB 2008-3: Business Combinations + consequential amendments to other standards
- AASB 127 (Revised) And AASB 2008-3: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
- AASB 2008-11: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard Business Combinations Among Not-for-Profit Entities [AASB 3]
- AASB 2008-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
- AASB 2009-6: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Editorial amendments
- AASB 2009-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Editorial amendments
- AASB 2009-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions (amendments to AASB 2)
- AASB Int. 12 and AASB 2007-2: Service Concession Arrangements + consequential amendments to other standards
- AASB Int. 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes
- AASB Int. 14: AASB 119 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
- AASB Int. 15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
- AASB Int. 18: Transfers of Assets from Customers
- AASB Int. 17 and AASB 2008-13: Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners + consequential amendments to other standards
- AASB 2007-9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Review of AASs 27, 29 and 31
- AASB 1004 (revised): Contributions
- AASB Int. 1038 (Revised): Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities
- AASB 1049: Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting
- AASB 1050: Administered Items
- AASB 1051: Land Under Roads
- AASB 1052: Disaggregated Disclosures
- AASB 2009-1: Borrowing Costs of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities
- AASB 2008-9: Amendments to AASB 1049 for Consistency with AASB 101
- AASB 2008-10 and AASB 2008-12: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Reclassification of Financial Assets
- AASB 2008-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations arising on Liquidation
- AASB 2008-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Eligible Hedged Items (also referred to as hedging portions of risk)
- AASB Int. 16: Hedged risk is the foreign currency risk arising between the functional currency of the net investment and the functional currency of any parent entity. This also applies to foreign operations in the form of joint ventures, associates or branches.
- AASB 2009-3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Embedded Derivatives (Amendments to AASB 139 and Interpretation 9)

c) Basis of consolidation

This financial report of June 2008 comprises the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund and its subsidiary as at at that time ("the consolidated entity"). The financial report of the subsidiary is prepared for the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all intercompany balances and income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.

The scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of \$1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd at 30 June 2009. This company is in the process of being wound up and has not traded during the period. On this basis consolidated financial statements were not prepared for the year ended 30 June 2009.

d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

(i) Significant accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. No judgements have been determined to be individually significant.

(ii) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period are:

Allowance for impairment loss on loans and receivables

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation of the value of future cash flows. The Scheme's policy for calculation of impairment losses is disclosed in Note 2(h)(ii).

e) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

f) Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Scheme and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before income is recognised:

i) Dividend and distribution income

Dividend or distribution income is recognised when the shareholders' or unitholders' right to receive the payment is established.

ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument) to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

iii) Default management fees

Income from default management fees is recognised in line with the executed agreement with the borrower when an event of default occurs.

iv) Changes in the fair value of investments

Gains or losses on investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair value at sale, or at year end, and the fair value at the previous valuation point. This includes both realised and unrealised gains and losses.

g) Finance costs

Interest on borrowings is recognised in the income statement in the period to which it relates. Issue costs associated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they relate using the effective interest method.

h) Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The consolidated entity determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Scheme commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value including transaction costs directly attributable to the financial asset. After initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reporting period. An allowance is made for doubtful debts when there is objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be able to collect the receivables. Impairment losses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a result of future events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in relation to a loan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense in the income statement.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the Credit Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the collectability of the debts is considered doubtful by estimation of expected losses in relation to loan portfolios where specific identification is impracticable.

The components of impaired assets are as follows:

"Loans in arrears" are loans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be able to collect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

"Assets acquired through the enforcement of security" are assets acquired in full or partial settlement of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

"Restructured loans" arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are removed from 'restructure loans' after a period of 12 months of performance against loan revised terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in 'loans in arrears' when impairment provisions are required.

When the Responsible Entity determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the interest is suspended and not brought into income. Should the Responsible Entity's analysis of the collectability subsequently change the interest will be brought into income at the time it is determined to be collectible.

i) Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders' investment advisors and are calculated as a percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related units are redeemed.

j) Payables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

Trades are recorded on trade date, and normally settled within three business days. Purchases of securities and investments that are unsettled at reporting date are included in payables.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the balance sheet as unitholders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 June 2009 under the Scheme's Constitution.

Foreign currency received from investors for investment into the Scheme is classified as a payable until it is subject to hedging by the Scheme entering into forward exchange contracts, at which time the foreign currency is invested into the Scheme and units issued.

k) Increase/decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable, expenses accrued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred income previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders.

l) Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme's Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the net taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capital gains arising from the disposal of investments. Unrealised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable until realised. Capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains.

m) Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees have been passed onto the Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC's) at a rate of 75%.

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the income statement net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO is included in receivable in the balance sheet. Cash flows relating to GST are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

n) Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme. Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed occurs. Unit redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of units on issue.

o) Taxation

Under current legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (i.e. unitholders are presently entitled to the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses are not distributed to unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset against any realised capital gains. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders.

p) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.

3. INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

a) Non-Interest income	30 June 2009	30 June	2008
	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$
Changes in the fair value of investments		28,379	-
Other income:			
Default management fees	10,751,114	1,724,208	1,724,208
Foreign exchange gains	26,553		1,727,200
Other income	121,196	281,741	281,741
	10,898,863	2,005,949	2,005,949

b) 1	nterest	income
------	---------	--------

		2009 Scheme	
Cash assets	Average balance \$	Income \$	Average rate %
Loans and advances	5,026,247 610,693,516 615,719,763	238,603 68,475,219 68,713,822	4.75 11.21

			26	008			
	•	Consolidated		Scheme			
Cash assets Loans and advances	Average balance \$ 25,331,798 722,514,861	Income \$ 1,504,559 81,612,059	Average rate % 5.94 11.30	Average balance \$ 25,302,766 722,514,861	Income \$ 1,501,881 81,645,183	Average rate % 5.94 11.30	
	747,846,659	83,116,618	11.11	747,817,627	83,147,064	11.11	

c) Distributions to unitholders	stributions to unitholders 30 June 200		30 June 2008		
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme		
	\$	\$	\$		
Distributions paid	37,037,812	47,984,582	47,984,582		
Distributions payable	2,234,098	3,305,015	3,305,015		
	39,271,910	51,289,597	51,289,597		

4. EXPENSES	30 June 2009	30 June	2008
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
a) Finance costs			
Interest on bank loans	12,218,376	10,021,448	10,021,448
Facility fees	1,863,982	358,949	358,949
	14,082,356	10,380,397	10,380,097
b) Other expenses			, ,
Loan origination expenses	2,194,460	9,410,607	9,410,607
Auditor's remuneration	478,744	236,001	236,001
Product disclosure statement production costs	22,591	62,972	62,972
Other expenses	336,860	470,438	470,532
·	3,032,655	10,180,018	10,180,112

5. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION	30 June 2009	30 June	2008
	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$
Audit and review of the financial reports	461,757	219,235	219,235
Other regulatory audit services	16,987	16,766	16,766
-	478,744	236,001	236,001

These expenses have been included within 'Other Expenses' in the Income Statement.

6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

All units in the Scheme are attributed with a value of \$1. The units on issue in the Scheme and the consolidated entity are equal. Movements in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders during the year were as follows:

	30 June 2009 Scheme			30 June 2008 Scheme	
Net assets attributable to unitholders	#	\$	#	\$	
Class A					
Opening balance	257,995,772	257,995,772	389,274,637	389,274,637	
Units issued during the year	5,022,455	5,022,455	47,186,284	47,186,284	
Units redeemed during the year	(16,932,807)	(16,932,807)	(189,724,646)	(189,724,646)	
Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions	7,193,991	7,193,991	11,259,497	11,259,497	
Closing Balance	253,279,411	253,279,411	257,995,772	257,995,772	
Class B					
Opening balance	218,750,000	218,750,000	394,050,000	394,050,000	
Units issued during the year	75,347,798	75,347,798	93,870,624	93,870,624	
Units redeemed during the year	(62,877,663)	(62,877,663)	(269,170,624)	(269,170,624)	
Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions	1,165	1,165	-	-	
Closing Balance	231,221,300	231,221,300	218,750,000	218,750,000	

	30 June 2009 Scheme		30 June 2008 Scheme	
	#	\$	#	\$
Class C				
Opening balance	4,673,077	4,632,471	-	-
Units issued during the year	7,658,444	7,658,444	4,725,809	4,725,809
Units redeemed during the			,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	.,.25,00>
year	(1,714,031)	(1,714,031)	(53,666)	(53,666)
Units issued upon		• • • •	(,,	(23,000)
reinvestment of distributions	542,888	542,888	934	934
Change in fair value of				,,,,
derivatives	in.	40,606	-	(40,606)
Closing Balance	11,160,378	11,160,378	4,673,077	4,632,471

	30 June 2 Schem		30 June Sche	
TOTAL	#	\$	#	\$
Opening balance	481,418,849	479,886,460	783,324,637	783,324,637
Units issued during the year Units redeemed during the	88,028,697	88,028,697	145,782,717	145,782,717
year Units issued on reinvestment	(81,524,501)	(81,524,501)	(458,948,936)	(458,948,936)
of distributions Transfers to and from the	7,738,044	7,738,044	11,260,431	11,260,431
income statement Change in fair value of	•	305,962	-	(1,491,783)
derivatives	-	40,606	_	(40,606)
Closing Balance	495,661,089	494,475,268	481,418,849	479,886,460

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitled to receive the declared distribution rate. There are a number of subclasses attached to class A.

Class B consists of related scheme unit holders. The distribution rate will be determined by the Funds Committee which is appointed by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to waive the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for this class of unit holders.

Class C consist of unit holders who have invested in foreign currencies and are entitled to receive the declared distribution rate. There are a number of subclasses attached to class C.

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per unit at unitholders' meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation.

Status of investment in fund

On 3 March 2009, the Scheme was closed to new investors and the manager will pay withdrawal requests up to 365 days after maturity. From 11 May 2009, the scheme was closed to investors and the manager suspended redemptions except for hardship provisions and feeder funds payments for investor distributions and fund expenses.

At 30 June 2009, \$112,591,711 of redemptions had been requested by unitholders but not yet paid. Of the total requested redemptions \$5,984,668 related to requests occurring within thirty days of year end. \$106,607,043 had been requested more than 30 days prior to year end. Redemptions also rank behind repayment of external financing facilities as detailed in Note 2(a).

7. DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

Distributions paid and payable	30 June 20 \$	009 30 June \$	2008
Class A	16,473,		31,419
Class B	22,159,	,	25,153
Class C	638,		33,025
	39,271,	910 51,2	89,597
8. INVESTMENTS	2009	2008	2008
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
Investment in subsidiary			j
	1	-	1

The scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of \$1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd at 30 June 2009. This company is in the process of being wound up and has not traded during the period. On this basis consolidated financial statements were not prepared for the year ended 30 June 2009.

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES	30 June 2009	30 Jun	e 2008
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
Secured mortgage loans	603,612,957	604,441,259	604,441,259
Other unsecured loans - related party	5,100,000	5,100,000	5,100,000
Provision for impairment	(2,667,000)	(2,716,521)	(2,716,521)
Net loans and advances	606,045,959	606,824,738	606,824,738
a) Aggregate amounts receivable from related parties			
Directors and director-related entities - secured	7,669,590	7,780,093	7,780,093
Related managed investment schemes - secured	35,465,182	1,760,566	1,760,566
Related managed investment schemes - unsecured	5,100,000	5,100,000	5,100,000
Other related entities	-	-	_
Provision for impairment	-	~	
•	48,234,772	14,640,659	14,640,659

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES	30 June 2009	30 June 2008	
(Continued)	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
b) Maturity analysis – Secured Mortgage Loans			
Less than 3 months	408,431,216	207,820,725	207,820,725
3-6 months	59,866,162	97,953,294	97,953,294
6-12 months	37,901,770	143,723,462	143,723,462
12-18 months	96,289,380	101,817,897	101,817,897
18-24 months	1,124,429	24,482,446	24,482,446
24-36 months		28,643,435	28,643,435
	603,612,957	604,441,259	604,441,259

c) Concentration of risk

As at 30 June 2009 no individual loan was greater than 10% of net assets attributable to unit holders. (2008: nil)

For concentration of risks relating to mortgage type and geographical location refer to Note 16.

d) Provisions for impairment

The impairment loss expense relating to loans and receivables comprises:

Specific provision 1,540,000 3,278,509 3,278,5 Collective impairment provision	-
Impairment losses realised directly in the	75
	75
Income Statement 3,516,938 2,876,402 2,879,3	
5,056,938 6,154,911 6,157,8	
30 June 2009 30 June 2008	
Scheme Consolidated Schem	е
\$ \$	
Specific Provision	
Opening balance 2,716,521 1,025,255 1,025,	225
Impairment losses provided for during year 1,540,000 3,278,509 3,278,	
Utilisation of provisions (loans realised) (1,589,521) (1,587,243) (1,587,243)	
Closing balance 2,667,000 2,716,521 2,716,	521
Collective impairment provision	
Opening balance	_
Impairment losses provided for during year	**
Closing balance	
TOTAL PROVISION 2,667,000 2,716,521 2,716,5	21

The collective provision for impairment is calculated by placing loans into pools with similar risk characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment.

	30 June 2009	30 June 2008	
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
Movement in Default loans			
Gross default loans opening balance	101,159,653	83,826,384	83,826,384
New and increased default loans	268,567,327	59,907,804	59,907,804
Balances written off	(15,307)	(754,152)	(754,152)
Returned to performing or repaid	(38,237,959)	(41,820,383)	(41,820,383)
Gross default loans closing balance	331,473,714	101,159,653	101,159,653
Specific provision	(2,667,000)	(2,716,521)	(2,716,521)
Net default loans	328,806,714	98,443,132	98,443,132

At 30 June 2009, the balance of loans that were past due but not impaired was \$304,553,260 (2008: \$63,789,822). As per the Scheme's policy, loans are impaired once they exceed 90 days overdue.

At 30 June 2009, \$26,920,454 of loans were individually impaired, with a total impairment loss of \$2,667,000.

Loans are secured by land, development property or completed construction property. The fair value of security over loans that are past due but not impaired at 30 June 2009 was \$389,017,914 (2008: \$73,192,466).

As at 30 June 2009 the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating to loans in default of \$331.5million (2008: \$46.4million) and had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security valued at \$415.4million (2008: \$59.8million).

Interest on arrears loans is suspended and not brought to account if the Responsible Entity considered that the amounts are not ultimately recoverable from the sale proceeds of the property. The amount of suspended interest at 30 June 2009 totalled \$6,532,157 (2008: \$3,078,983).

10.	PAYABLES	30 June 2009	30 June 2008		
	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme \$		
	currency awaiting investment	2,242	445,982	445,982	
Other pa	yables	1,049,127	432,814	432,814	
		1,051,369	878,796	878,796	

11. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

	30 June 2009 Scheme \$	30 June 2008		
		Consolidated \$	Scheme \$	
Secured bank loan	133,000,000	150,000,000	150,000,000	

On 4 September 2009, the Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, LM Investment Management Limited, and the Scheme's external financier negotiated extended terms for the \$150 million facility that had matured. This facility agreement provides a revised facility of \$128 million, being the balance of the loan at that date, with a requirement for repayments to be made quarterly with the full principal balance to be repaid by or on 30 June 2010, in priority to any redemptions.

The facility agreement requires the Scheme to repay 60% of all net proceeds to the external financer, being the cash received from the realisation of assets with minimum cumulative quarterly repayment amount as detailed in Note 2.

The interest rate payable on the facility is BBSY +4.50% per annum. In the event that the repayment is not made in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payable is increased to BBSY +6.50%.

As at the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with all loan covenants in the facility agreement and has repaid the first \$2.7 million required in the period to 30 November 2009.

12. RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee directly from the Scheme.

On 1 February 2009 the Scheme's arrangement in relation to management fees was amended. The basis of the management fee calculation remains unchanged however the revised agreement provides that LM Investment Management Limited is required to be paid up to \$1 million per month for administration and

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

fund management services, with any monthly management fee in excess of \$1 million to be paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd for administration services provided on behalf of LM Investment Management Limited.

Custodian

The Custodian of the Scheme is LM Investment Management Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited during the financial year are disclosed in Note 15.

Directors' remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity in connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 15.

Directors' holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end are set out below.

	30 June 2009	2009 30 June 2008	
	Scheme S	Consolidated	Scheme
- LM Investment Management Limited - Directors and director related entities - Other Associates of LM Investment	- -	.9 -	\$ - -
Management Limited	231,221,300	218,750,000	218,750,000

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 2009 the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its affiliates (2008: nil).

Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities, may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests subsisting at year-end.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Ltd, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a management fee for these services directly from Scheme assets. On 1 February 2009 the Scheme's arrangement in relation to management fees was amended. The basis of the management fee calculation remains unchanged however the revised agreement provides that LM Investment

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

Management Limited is required to be paid up to \$1 million per month for administration and fund management services, with any monthly management fee in excess of \$1 million to be paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd for administration services provided on behalf of LM Investment Management Limited.

During the year, management fees of \$15,410,762 (2008: \$5,801,477) were paid or payable by the Scheme. Of these fees \$5,100,000 (2008: \$Nil) was paid or payable to LM Investment Management Limited and \$10,310,762 (2008: \$5,801,477) was paid or payable to LM Administration Pty Ltd.

During the year, loan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme were \$4,366,378 (2008: \$10,098,488) of which \$2,194,460 was reimbursed by the Scheme to the Responsible Entity for the administration of loan origination services (2008: \$9,410,607).

On 28 August 2008, it was resolved by the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity to transfer three mortgage loans to the value of \$33,513,345 and the related first mortgage security to the LM Managed Performance Fund (LM MPF). There is a fixed charge over these three specific secured properties plus a floating charge over the remaining assets of LM MPF to provide security to the Scheme in the event of default by the LM MPF. This loan between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest bearing at 10%, with the interest being capitalised and was due to be repaid to the Scheme on 30 June 2009. Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity has agreed to extend the repayment term of the loan to 28 August 2010, no other changes were made to the terms of this facility. Since the year end, LM MPF has sold one of the properties and has repaid \$3.6 million to the Scheme.

The Scheme has advanced funds to a related scheme, the LM Managed Performance Fund, to finance a joint venture entered into with a borrower of the Scheme. At 30 June 2009, the balance of the loan to the related Scheme was \$9,563,238 (2008: \$7,008,047), which is secured by first mortgage of the assets of the unrelated borrower and by a guarantee from the LM Managed Performance Fund. This loan has been subject to the normal credit approval review procedures of the Scheme.

The LM MPF has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund totalling \$46,905,578 (2008: \$31,024,921). The LM MPF may on occasion pay development and construction costs on those related loans. As part of the normal role as second mortgagee, the related scheme will fund interest payments from time to time within approved loan facility limits. During the 30 June 2009 year, interest payments totalling \$1,903,971 (2008: \$3,955,100) were paid from the related scheme on behalf of the borrowers.

At 30 June 2008, management assigned a \$5,100,000 receivable within the Scheme from LM Investment Management Limited to LM MPF. The loan will accrue interest ay 10% per annum and is for a period of 12 months, expiring on 30 June 2009 and is unsecured. Since 30 June 2009, the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity has agreed to extend the repayment term of this receivable to 30 June 2010.

During the year the Scheme paid a loan origination fee to LM Investment Management Limited, the Scheme's responsible entity of \$375,000. LM Investment Management Limited assigned this receivable to LM Administration Pty Limited, a related party. The directors of the Responsible Entity agreed to extinguish the liability of the Scheme in relation to this expense by reducing prepaid management fees payable to the Scheme by LM Administration Pty Limited.

		30 June 2009	30 June	2008	
		Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme	
	a term .	\$	\$	\$	
1	Responsible Entity remuneration received or lue and receivable			•	
4					
•	remarkation rees for the year paid of				
	payable directly to LM Administration Pty Ltd				
6	Management fees for the year paid or	10,310,762	5,801,477	5,801,477	
	payable to LM Investment Management				
	Limited	£ 100 000			
8	Expenses including administration	5,100,000	-	-	
	expenses incurred by the Responsible				
	Entity and its associated entities, which				
	are reimbursed in accordance with the				
	provisions of the Constitution.	_			
¢	Expenses including administration		-	•	
	expenses incurred by LM Administration				
	Pty Ltd, which are reimbursed in				
	accordance with the provisions of the				
	Constitution.	960,259	826,743	826,743	
•	Loan origination fees received by		•	,	
	borrowers within the Scheme that were				
	reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for				
	the administration of loan origination services				
C.	scivices stodian's remuneration	2,194,460	9,410,607	3,381,487	
w	Custodian's fees paid by the Scheme	123,356	157,876	157,876	
	lance with related parties			,	
A	ggregate amounts receivable from related				
	rties by the Scheme were as follows:				
•	LM Administration Pty Ltd (management	6,000,000	6,716,960	6,716,960	
•	fees prepaid by the Scheme)(i)				
•	Australian International Investments Pty Limited (ii)	7,669,589	7,780,093	7,780,093	
•	LM Managed Performance Fund (iii)	41 745 050			
ĕ.	LM Currency Protected Australian	41,745,359	5,100,000	5,100,000	
-	Income Fund (iv)	100,000	-	-	

i). These amounts are included in prepayments of \$6,269,970 at 30 June 2009. No amounts are payable to related parties by the Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments during the year was \$7,973,684 (2008: \$6,632,631) which was non-interest bearing. Interest foregone on the above amount if calculated at the weighted average cash rate of 4.75% (2008: 5.94%) would have been \$378,750 (2008: \$393,978). If this revenue had been collected, the sum foregone would have been paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd as management fees during the year.

This prepaid management fee will be recovered through LM Administration Pty Ltd's Agreement to offset future payable management fees.

- ii). Peter Charles Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Pty Ltd which is a joint borrower in a secured loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2009 for \$7,669,589 (2008: \$7,780,093). This transaction was approved on an arms length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.
- iii). This amount relates to the assignment of debt of \$5,100,000 from LM Administration Pty Ltd to LM MPF which was originally a prepayment of management fees from the Scheme to LM Administration Pty Ltd. Plus the loans and receivable and associated interest receivable balance at 30 June 2009 of \$36,645,359.
- iv). This amount relates to payments for margin calls on behalf of LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund. This transaction was paid on normal terms and at arms length.

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited are set out below:

Entity	Investment at year end \$	Interest held in the scheme at year end	Units issued during the year	Units redeemed during the year	Distributions paid and payable
30 June 2009				J	
LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	126,675,000	25.56%	38,774,376	31,399,376	12,847,979
LM Institutional Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	10,069,000	2.03%	7,545,535	4,976,535	1,051,556
LM Managed Performance Fund	_	Me.	16,450,507	16,900,507	100 744
LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund	94,477,300	19.06%	12,023,535	9,046,235	123,644 8,132,510
LM Australian Income Fund	-	0%	555,000	555,000	2.565
Dhani Darcy		0%	216	216	3,565 19
Harold Ward	-			2.0	19
Total	231,221,300	46.65%	75,349,169	62,877,869	22,159,273
Entity	Investment at year end \$	Interest held in the Scheme at	Units issued during the year	Units redeemed during the	Distributions paid and payable
30 June 2008		year end		year	
LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	119,300,000	24.78%	43,500,000	85,700,000	14,041,838
LM Institutional Currency Protected Australian Income Fund	7,500,000	1.56%	14,150,000	35,400,000	2,023,890
LM Managed Performance Fund	450,000	0.09%	29,420,624	33,770,624	395,977
LM Wholesale First Mortgage Income Fund	91,500,000	19.01%	6,800,000	114,300,000	10,362,449
Total	218,750,000	45.44%	93,870,875	269,190,892	26,824,405

13. RECEIVABLES	30 June 2009	30 June	e 2008
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$
Interest and distribution receivable	-	54,641	54,641
Mortgage interest receivable	1,599,427	1,727,883	1,727,883
Mortgage interest receivable - related party	3,132,014	•	***************************************
Penalty interest receivable	192,525	51,531	51,531
Default management fees receivable	11,995,827	2,702,333	2,702,333
GST receivable	163,315	84,908	84,908
Other	235,590	176,494	176,493
	17,318,698	4,797,790	4,797,789

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	30 June 2009	30 Jun	e 2008
	Scheme	Consolidated	Scheme
	\$	\$	\$

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

- Cash at bank and in hand 1,154,822 14,643,332 14,643,332

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is \$1,154,822 (2008: \$14,643,332).

As at 30 June 2009 \$580,941 (2008: \$293,000) of cash at bank was held in foreign exchange margin accounts and therefore was not available for use by the Scheme.

b) Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to unitholders to net cash flows from operating activities

	30 June 2009	2009 30 June 2008	
	Scheme \$	Consolidated \$	Scheme
Change in net assets attributable to unitholders	305,962	(1,491,783)	\$ (1,491,783)
Adjustments for:			
Non cash impairment expense	5,056,938	6,154,911	6,157,884
Non cash interest income	(50,395,681)	(59,070,947)	(59,104,073)
Distributions to unitholders	39,271,910	51,289,597	51,289,597
(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable	(3,257,517)	2,481,469	2,418,863
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables	(8,654,940)	(9,745,107)	(9,745,107)
Increase/(decrease) in payables	1,161,515	397,044	375,530
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities	16,511,813	(9,984,816)	(10,099,089)

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

c) Reinvestment of distributions

During the financial year, the Scheme issued 7,738,044 units (2008: 11,260,431) as a result of reinvestment of distribution by unitholders totaling \$7,783,044 (2008: \$11,260,431). These transactions have not been included in the Cash Flow Statement.

15. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

(a) Details of Key Management Personnel

(i) Key Management Personnel

The Key Management Personnel ("KMP") of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible Entity. The Directors of the Responsible Entity during the year were:

Exe	cutive	directors

Mr Peter Charles Drake
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy
Mr Eghard van der Hoven
Ms Francene Maree Mulder
Appointed 31 January 1997
Appointed 15 September 2003
Appointed 22 June 2006
Appointed 30 September 2006
Appointed 16 December 2008

Non-executive directors

Mr John Dillon Appointed 8 June 2005; resigned 28 August 2008
Mr John Vallander Llewellyn Appointed 1 June 2007; resigned 1 July 2008
Mr John O'Sullivan Appointed 28 November 2007

(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel

(i) Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM Investment Management Ltd as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuneration directly from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the Scheme. The remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP's cost of remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these costs (for disclosure purposes only) are discussed below.

(ii) Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd are responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Responsible Entity.

It is the Executive Directors' policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

(iii) Non-executive directors

Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This takes into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Directors are not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and conditions.

(iv) Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been allocated to each scheme. The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly across all schemes.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2009

Remuneration of KMP

È

2009		Primary		Post Employment	loyment				
Specified K/MP	Salary & Fees	Cash	Non Monetary Benefits	Super	Retirement Benefits	Equity	Other	TOTAL	Total performance
Drake, PC*	स्भ	69i	ън	બ્રા	G NI	S	(A)	(A)	%
Darcy, LM**	25,727	2,642	,	2.066	F 1	1	•	, ,	•
Van der Hoven, E**	18,828	966'1	•	1.649	. ,	:	,	30,435	ì
Mulder, F**	16,096	1,996	•	1.644	· !		ı	5,4,77	1
Tickner, S	13,875	1,346	1	1321) (ı	1	19,736	1
O'Sullivan, J	3,846			; ;	l \$	• :	•	16,542	1
	78,372	7,980	•	6,680	Ł			93,032	*
2008		Primary		Post Employment	loyment				The state of the s
Specified KiMP	Salary &	Cash	Non Monetary Benefits	Super	Retirement Benefits	Equity	Other	TOTAL	Total performance
Drake, PC*	₩.	ØЯ	∽ ii	S	(A)	∽ }	∽ II	€AI	resated %
Darcy, LM**	47,762	. ,	t i	7 200	đ	•	r	•	' .
Van der Hoven, E**	33,865	•		2,040	B	1	•	52,061	
Mulder, F**	32,142)	0,040 0,040	ſ	•	•	36,913	•
Dillon, J	3 448	ı	r	2,693	ı	ŧ	,	35,035	1.
Llewellyn, V	3,448	• •	•	310	1	•	ı	3,758	•
O'Sullivan, J	2.058	•	•	310	3	•	r	3,758	1
	177 771			(0)	E		-	2,243	3
Dates Charles and a state of the	2445	*		11,045		ı	1	133,768	•

* Peter Charles Drake is the beneficial owner of 100% of the ordinary shares of the Responsible Entity. No salary and wages are paid to Peter Drake directly from the payable on cessation of employment or a significant change in ownership of the company. No amount has been reflected in the above disclosures in relation to this company or any of the schemes. ** As executives of the Responsible Entity, LM Darcy, E van der Hoven and F Mulder are entitled to a termination benefit that is

Γ

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

	2009 Scheme \$	2008 Consolidated \$	2008 Scheme \$
Short term	86,352	122,723	122,723
Post employment	6,680	11,045	11,045
Other long term	-	-	
Termination benefits		-	_
Equity based payment		-	_
Other	•		_
	93,032	133,768	133,768

Loans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their related entities during the period.

(c) Other Transactions and Balances with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party Note 12, the Scheme has no other transactions and balances with specified KMP.

16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

a) Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies, and Processes

Risks arising from holding financial instruments are inherent in the Scheme's activities, and are managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The scheme is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk.

Financial instruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of generating a return on the investment made by unitholders, in addition to derivatives, cash and cash equivalents, net assets attributable to unitholders, and other financial instruments such as trade debtors and creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Responsible Entity is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that arise from these financial instruments.

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets attributable to unitholders of the Scheme from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below. Information about the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well as compliance with established investment mandate limits, is also monitored by the Responsible Entity. These mandate limits reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as the level of risk that the Scheme is willing to accept.

This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties within the Responsible Entity on a regular basis as deemed appropriate, including the fund manager, compliance manager, other key management, Risk and Investment Committees, and ultimately the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity.

As part of its risk management strategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage exposures resulting from changes in foreign currencies.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political, and other conditions.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure to ensure concentrations of risk remain within acceptable levels and either reduces the exposure or uses derivative instruments and collateral to manage the excessive concentrations when the arise.

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Scheme to incur a financial loss.

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Scheme, other than derivatives, the Scheme's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure equal to the fair value of these instruments as disclosed in the Balance Sheet. This does not represent the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values, but best represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting date.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values.

The Scheme minimizes credit risk by:

- undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers
- dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;
- obtaining independent valuations for all loans; and
- maintaining an average loan to valuation ratio not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

At year end, 72% of the balance of mortgage loans is secured on construction/development property (2008: 76%) and 28% on commercial property (2008: 24%).

Risk concentrations of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

	2009	2008
Sydney CBD	0.00%	0.00%
Within 40km of Sydney CBD	9.64%	11.03%
New South Wales - Other	22,33%	21.29%
Melbourne - CBD	0.00%	0.00%
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD	6.33%	7.22%
Victoria – Other	0.71%	2.34%
Brisbane CBD	0.00%	0.00%
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD	0.00%	2.11%
Queensland - Other	52.09%	39.80%
Canberra - Other	1.35%	1.29%
Northern Territory	0.00%	5.47%
Western Australia	7.02%	9.00%
Tasmania	0.53%	0.45%
	100.00%	100.00%

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying value of the assets as indicated in the balance sheet. No single mortgage investment exceeds 10% of the Scheme which ensure that there is no concentration of risk.

The scheme has a concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign currency swaps are entered into with the same counterparty.

Credit quality of mortgage loans

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in accordance with the investment mandate of the Scheme. The scheme's exposure in each category is monitored on a daily basis. This review process allows the Responsible Entity to assess the potential loss as a result of risks and take corrective action.

As at 30 June 2009 the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating to loans in default of \$331.5million (2008: \$46.4million) and had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security valued at \$415.4million (2008: \$59.8million).

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to investment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The nature of the investments entered into by the Scheme commands that liquidity be managed cautiously and aligned to the redemptions policy outlined within the constitution of the scheme. At 30 June 2009, the redemptions requested from unitholders was \$112,591,711 (2008: \$15,309,573).

On 3 March 2009, the Scheme was closed to new investors and the manager will pay withdrawal requests up to 365 days after maturity. From 11 May 2009, the Scheme was closed to investors and

the manager suspended redemptions except for hardship provisions and feeder funds payments for investor distributions and fund expenses. At 22 September 2009, \$124,072,370 of redemptions has been requested by unitholders but not yet paid. Redemptions rank behind repayment of external financing facilities as detailed in Note 2(a).

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme has adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover fund obligations and that liquidity is managed within the Scheme's policies and limits.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Scheme comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable, net assets attributable to unitholders, fair value of foreign exchange contracts and the secured bank loan. Trade and other payables and distributions payable have no contractual maturities but are typically settled within 30 days. Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 months of year end.

Net assets attributable to unit holders mature over the following periods:

Period from 30 June 2009	Value	
Due and payable*	\$112,591,711	
< 12 months	\$344,402,653	
12-24 months	\$34,732,482	
24-36 months	\$2,404,864	
36-48 months	\$343,558	·····
>48 months	*	
Total	\$494,475,268	

^{*} This balance represents redemptions requested but not paid at 30 June 2009 of \$112,591,711.

The secured bank loan (Note 11) is repayable by 30 June 2010, as detailed in Note 2(a). When drawn, the loan is secured by the assets of the Scheme.

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment strategies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of financial instruments. The Scheme has established limits on investments in interest bearing assets, which are monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme's exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and financial liabilities is set out below:

í	ų
١	2
١	r)
۱	Ľ
ì	*

	Note	Weiţ avel intere	Weighted average interest rate	Floating Interest Rate	terest Rate	Securities co mature in les	Fixed interest rate Securities contracted to Securit mature in less than I year mature in	rest rate Securities contracted to mature in more than I year	ntracted to e than I year	Total	79
		2009	2008	2009	2008	2000	9006	but less than 5 years	n S years		
		%	%) }	*	9669	2009	2008	2009	2008
Cash and cash equivelants	13(b)	4.75	5.94	1,154,822	14,643,332	•	1				
Secured mortgage loans (gross)	6	9.52	11.30	•	ı	506,199,148	506.199.148 449.407.482	007 414 700		1,154,822	14,643,332
Unsecured loan	10	10.0	10.0	a	•	5 100 000	200,000	77,414,080	97,414,080 154,943,777	603,612,957	604,441,259
Loan facility	6 ⁄	8.36	1.1	(133,000,000) (150,000,000)	(150,000,000)	000,001,0	2,100,000	ı	ı	5,100,000	5,100,060
					7,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2,2		•	*	T	(133,000,000)	(150,000,000)
Total				() · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
			•	(131,845,178)	(131,845,178) (135,356,668) 511,299,148 454,597,482	511,299,148	454,597,482	63,900,106	63,900,106 154,943,777	476,868,050	474 184 591

All other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2009

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Scheme's income statement to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the interest income for one year, based on the financial instruments held at 30 June 2009.

Accounting assumptions

The basis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates.

2009

	Change in	basis points	Sensitivity of income (\$00	
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
	50	50	3,124	3,124
Financial instruments	100	100	6,247	6,247

2008

	Change in	basis points	Sensitivity of income (\$00	
	Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
	50	50	3,869	3,869
Financial Instruments	100	100	7,738	7,738

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into foreign exchange contracts principally to hedge the foreign exchange risk implicit in the value of the investor funds denominated in foreign currencies and to secure a particular exchange rate for a planned purchase or sale of investments. The term of the contracts rarely exceeds twelve months.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2009 was (\$6,370) (2008: \$40,606).

The nominal Australian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2009 was \$11,253,138 (2008: \$4,817,423).

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant exposure at 30 June 2009 on its monetary assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Australian Dollar on the income statements, with all other variables held constant.

Foreign currency

Investments in the fund are hedged in the relevant currency against Australian dollar currency movements. The fund manages foreign currency risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).

The FFECs are facilitated by several banking firms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and investors. The above table is only applicable if the FFEC facilitator is unable to meet its obligation and the fund therefore seeks an alternative party to transact the FFEC.

4 5

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

٠. چ

* ...

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2009

Accounting Assumptions-Variability of foreign currency

The sensitivity is based on the volatility of changes in global currency.

			2009		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Currency	AUD equivalent in exposure by currency (000's)	Change in cu		Effect on net ass to unith (000	olders
		Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
EUR	1,716	10	10	172	172
GBP	2,725	10	10	273	273
NZD	4,523	10	10	452	452
TRY	301	10	10	30	30
USD	1,556	10	10	156	156
HKD	182	10	10	18	18
SGD	217	10	10	22	22
THB	33	10	10	3	3

			2008		
Currency	AUD equivalent in exposure by currency (000's)	Change in cu %	rrency rate in 6	Effect on net ass to unith (000	olders
		Increase	Decrease	Increase	Decrease
CAD	106	10	10	11	11
EUR	85	10	10	9	Q
GBP	1,507	10	10	151	151
JPY	155	10	10	16	16
NZD	2,179	10	10	218	218
TRY	130	10	10	13	13
USD	656	10	10	66	66

Equity Risk

The Scheme is not subject to equity risk at 30 June 2009.

. :-

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2009

17. FAIR VALUES

The Scheme's financial assets and liabilities included in the Balance Sheet are carried at their fair value as disclosed by class of financial instruments or at amounts that approximate their fair values.

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adopted in determining fair values for investments.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Business segment

The Scheme is organised into one business segment which operates solely in the business of investment management within Australia.

(b) Geographic segments

The Scheme operates in Australia and all directly held assets are Australian. Geographic concentrations disclosed in Note 16(b).

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 June 2009.

20. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the Scheme disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009 or on the results and cash flows of the Scheme for the year ended on that date, other than those detailed below:

(a) Renegotiation of the Loan Facility

On 4 September 2009, the Directors of the Responsible Entity, LM Investment Management Limited, of the Scheme and the Scheme's external financier negotiated extended terms for the \$150 million facility which matured on 31 July 2009. This revised facility for \$128 million expires on 30 June 2010. A condition of the revised facility is full repayment of the facility by 30 June 2010 in line with the agreed repayment plan, as disclosed in Note 2(a).

The interest rate payable on the extended facility is BBSY + 4.50% per annum. In the event that the repayment is not made in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payable is increased to BBSY + 6.50%.

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, I state that:

- a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out on pages 8 to 45 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and
 - (ii) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme's financial position as at 30 June 2009, and of its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.
- b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and
- c) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitution.

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy

Director

Gold Coast

30 September 2009



1 Eagle Street Brisbane OLD 4000 Australia GPO Box 7878 Brisbane OLD 4001

Tel: +61 7 3011 3333 Fax: +61 7 3011 3100 www.ey.com/au

Independent auditor's report to the unitholders of LM First Mortgage Income Fund

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund ('the Scheme'), which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors' declaration.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the responsible entity of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2, the directors also state that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the directors' report.



■ ERNST & YOUNG

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion:

- the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - (i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM First Mortgage Income Fund at 30 June 2009 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
- 2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, as disclosed in Note 2.

Emsta Young

Ernst & Young

PHQualcie

Paula McLuskie Partner Brisbane 30 September 2009